
 
 

Isabelle Oechslie 
Town Planner 

(207) 563-5168 
IOechslie@Damariscottame.com 

Town of Damariscotta 
21 School Street 
Damariscotta, ME 04543 

 
 
 

Town of Damariscotta 
Planning Board Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, January 3, 2023 – 6:00PM 
Hybrid Meeting: Town Office & via Zoom 

 
Join Zoom Meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88985249796 

Meeting ID: 889 8524 9796 
Passcode: DamaPB 

 
1. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
2. Call to Order 

 
3. New Business: 

a. Site Plan and Conditional Use Applications to install a refrigeration system rack in a 
8' wide x 20' long x 8.6' high Conex container with condenser at their business at 5 
Coastal Market Drive (off of Main Street) (Tax Map 6, Lot 118-1) 

▪ Applicant: Main Street Grocery 
▪ Zone: C-2 

 
b. Site Plan Amendment Application to install a holding tank rather than connecting to 

the public sewer as originally approved at 276 Main Street (Tax Map 6 Lot 117) 
▪ Applicant: Damariscotta Region Chamber of Commerce 
▪ Zone: C-2 

 
4. Old Business: 

a. Site Plan and Conditional Use Applications to construct a 102-bed nursing care 
facility and associated site improvements (including parking areas, two curb cuts, 
stormwater management facilities, and courtyard areas and path systems for facility 
residents) at 2 Piper Mill Road (Tax Map 1, Lot 50) 

▪ Applicant: Clippership Landing Development, LLC 
▪ Zone: Rural 

 
5. Review of Meeting Minutes: December 5, 2022 

 
6. Other Business: 

a. Questions from the public (an opportunity for the public to ask questions on items 
not on the agenda) 

b. Planner’s Report 
 

7. Adjournment 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88985249796


Table of Contents 

Item Page Number 

3. a. Site Plan and Conditional Use Applications for Main Street Grocery (5 Coastal
Market Drive)

• Staff Review Memo & Recommendation 3 
• DRAFT Findings of Fact 9 
• Application Binder 15 

3. b. Site Plan Amendment for Damariscotta Region Chamber of Commerce (276 Main
Street)

• Staff Review Memo & Recommendation 25 
• DRAFT Findings of Fact 31 
• Application Binder 37 
• Originally Approved Utility Plan (1/3/2022) 55 

4. a. Site Plan and Conditional Use Applications for Clippership Landing Development,
LLC (2 Piper Mill Road)

• Staff Review Memo & Recommendation 56 
• DRAFT Findings of Fact 74 
• Opinion from MMA Legal Services re: Land Use Definition of Dwelling 92 
• Applicant’s Supplemental Information (dated December 23, 2022) 94 
• Public Comments Received 108 

5. Minutes of Previous Meetings: December 5, 2022 112 



 
 

Planning Department 
Damariscotta Town Office 
21 School Street, 
Damariscotta, ME 04543 

Isabelle Oechslie 
Town Planner 

Phone: (207) 563-5168 
IOechslie@damariscottame.com  

 

 
AGENDA ITEM #3A 

Meeting of January 3, 2023 

Site Plan & Conditional Use Applications – Main Street Grocery 

5 Coastal Market Drive – Main Street Grocery 
PID #2205 

INTRODUCTION 

Main Street Grocery is proposing to install a new refrigeration system rack in a 8' wide x 20' long x 
8.6' high Conex container with condenser to be located in the rear of the building at 5 Coastal 
Market Drive (off of Main Street). The proposal is essentially a container that will hold refrigeration 
utilities currently located on the roof of the building. The parcel is further identified as Assessor’s 
Tax Map 6, Lot 118-1 and it is located within the C-2 Zoning District. 

 
 
Notices of the pending application were mailed on December 19, 2022 to 6 property owners 
abutting the subject property and were posted at the Town Office. No abutters objected to the 
application and therefore a public hearing is not required, per Sec. 102.5(G) of the Damariscotta 
Town Ordinances.  

mailto:IOechslie@damariscottame.com


 

Page 2 of 6 
 

This submission is being reviewed pursuant to Chapter 102, Sec. 102.6: Performance Standards [Site 
Plan Review] and Chapter 101, Sec. 101.9: Appeals and Conditional Uses. 

SUBMISSION CHRONOLOGY 

Application Received:   December 5, 2022 

Pre-Application Date:   N/A 

PROJECT DATA 

Zoning: C-2 
Land Area: 3.02 acres 
Existing Land Use: Retail 
Proposed Land Use: No change 
 Allowed: Proposed: 
Max. Building Height: 40 feet 8.6 feet 
Min. Front Yard: 20 feet (or the average of 

existing setbacks on abutting 
properties) 

N/A – no change 

Min. Side Yard: 15 feet 15 feet 
Min. Rear Yard: 15 feet 12 feet (existing nonconformity) 
Min. Off-Street Parking*: 4 spaces for each 1,000 s.f. 

of floor area 
N/A – no change 

 
*Pursuant to 102.6(H)(7)(i). 

REVIEW PROCESS & UNIQUE ISSUES 

According to the Assessor’s records, the original building was built in 1990, prior to the Town 
adopting Ordinances establishing building setbacks in 1994 (with the Site Review Ordinance, which 
is where setback requirements were noted at the time). The applicant has indicated that there has 
been a trash compactor in the place of the proposed container since a year or so after the building 
was constructed. Thus, the current project should be a grandfathered non-conforming project (since 
it will meet the setbacks more than the previously existing trash compactor did). Sec. 101.6(A)(1)(a) 
allows for a non-conformity to be repaired, maintained, and improved, provided that there is no 
expansion of the non-conformity. The applicants have provided a plan dated through April 10, 1990 
showing the location of a pad for the trash compactor. Building permits from the Town were not 
required for utility structures at this time.  

I have asked the Code Enforcement Officer to attend the January 3, 2023 meeting to answer any 
questions that you may have about grandfathered non-conformities. 

 



 

Page 3 of 6 
 

ANALYSIS OF PROJECT 

Site Plan and Conditional Use reviews are subject to the standards outlined in Chapter 102, Sec. 
102.6: Performance Standards [Site Plan Review] and Chapter 101, Sec. 101.9: Appeals and 
Conditional Uses. 

Staff’s analysis of the site plan and conditional use standards are organized by topic below, with 
references to the corresponding provisions.  

1. Sec. 102.6(A): Preserve and Enhance the Landscape 
The bufferyard and area where the applicant plans to construct the addition is fully paved. 
Therefore, there are no natural areas to preserve within the footprint of the project that can 
be preserved. 

 
As the site is essentially built out and the addition is being added in a paved area, essential or 
significant wildlife habitats or fisheries are not anticipated to be directly impacted by the 
project. Therefore, the project as proposed meets the requirements of this section. 

 
2. Sec. 102.6(B): Relationship to Environment and Neighboring Buildings 

As demonstrated by the Project Data Table above, the proposed project is within all bulk 
and spacing requirements established in the Zoning District, except for the rear setbacks. 
The applicants have indicated that there was previously a trash compactor located in this 
location that was grandfathered (placed there before the Ordinance took effect), and Sec. 
101.6(A)(1)(a) allows for a non-conformity to be repaired, maintained, and improved, 
provided that there is no expansion of the non-conformity. The trash compactor was 
approximately 10’ wide, which means that it encroached into the required setback area by 5’. 
The proposed utility structure for the refrigeration units is 8’ wide and will encroach into the 
setback area by 3’. This is less non-conforming that the trash compactor, and thus, this 
standard has been met. 
 
Furthermore, the project is compatible with the scale and type of development in the vicinity 
because it is a commercial building where the utility structures are located to the rear. 

 
As such, the project as designed meets the requirements of Sec. 102.4(B)(1) and (B)(2). The 
requirements of (B)(3) are limited to projects in the downtown commercial area, and thus are 
not applicable to this project. 

 
3. Sec. 102.6(C): Air Quality 

The refrigeration unit is not anticipated to emit dust, ash or smoke that would impact air 
quality. Therefore, this standard has been met. 
 

4. Sec. 102.6(D): Lighting and Glare 
As no exterior lighting is proposed with this application, this standard is not applicable. 

  



 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 
5. Sec. 102.6(E): Noise 

All noise once in operation will be required to adhere to the provisions of this section, 
including staying below the sound level limitations as described. For a project abutting a 
residential use (as this one does to the north and west), the sound level limits are 55 dBA 
between the hours of 7 a.m. and 7 p.m. and 45 dBA between the hours of 7 p.m. and 7 a.m. 
Noise associated with construction is only allowed between the hours of 6:30 a.m. and 8 
p.m. Condition #5 reaffirms this requirement. 
 

6. Sec. 102.6(F), (G), (H), and (I): Traffic, Circulation, and Access 
Trips 

Additional trips are not anticipated to be generated as a result of this addition. Therefore, 
this standard is not applicable. 

Access 

There is currently a gravel access drive to the rear of the building to allow for dumpster 
pickup. As the structure will be less non-conforming than the previous structure, allowing 
for more space between the property line and the proposed building, this standard has been 
met. 

Given the lack of additional traffic generated by this project and the capacity and design of 
the roadways connected to the site, the project will not cause unreasonable public road 
congestion or unsafe conditions on private or public ways, consistent with the requirements 
of Section 102.6(F) and (G). 

Parking 

Changes to the number of parking spaces are not proposed with this application. Therefore, 
parking standards are not applicable to this project. 

7. Sec. 102.6(J): Existing Public Utilities and Services 
The expansion of the refrigeration unit is not anticipated to generate additional sewage. 
Therefore, the project meets the requirements for adequate sewage waste disposal. 
 
The expansion of the refrigeration unit is not anticipated to generate additional solid waste; 
therefore, the project is consistent with this section. 
 
Additionally, the Fire Department has reviewed the project to ensure that emergency access 
will be appropriate. No concerns have been raised. 
 

8. Sec. 102.6(K): Water Quality 
The proposed project will not adversely affect the quality or quantity of groundwater, 
consistent with Sec. 102.6(K) and Sec. 102.6(L), governing the Stormwater Management 
Plan. A detailed discussion of wetland impacts is provided in item 12 below. 

  



 

Page 5 of 6 
 

 
9. Sec. 102.6(L): Stormwater Management 

As the refrigeration unit is being installed in an already developed area of the site, additional 
stormwater impact is not anticipated as a result of this project. 

10. Sec. 102.6(M): Erosion & Sediment Control 
As the unit is being placed on an already developed area, thus, additional erosion and 
sediment control provisions are not required. 
 

11. Sec. 102.6(N): Water Supply 
Additional water is not needed as part of this application. 
 

12. Sec. 102.6(O): Natural Beauty 
Wetlands, trees, and natural beauty will not be impacted by the proposed development, as 
the project is located within an already developed area of the site. 
 

13. Sec. 102.6(P): Historic and Archeological Resources 
No documented archeological or historic resources will be impacted by the proposal. 
Therefore, this standard has been met. 
 

14. Sec. 102.6(Q): Filling and Excavation 
All excavation will be incidental to the proposed development and are not part of an 
excavation or filling operation. Thus, this standard is not applicable to this project. 
 

15. Sec. 102.6(R): Sewage Disposal 
Additional sewer impact is not anticipated as a result of this proposal. Therefore, this 
standard is not applicable. 
 

16. Sec. 102.6(S): Phosphorus Control 
The subject property is not located within the watershed of a great pond; therefore, this 
standard is not applicable. 
 

17. Sec. 102.6(T): Buffer Areas 
As these standards pertain buffers between incompatible uses, and the adjacent use is also a 
retail use (Hancock Lumber), these standards are not applicable. 

 
18. Sec. 102.6(U): Signs 

No additional signage is proposed with this application; therefore, these standards are not 
applicable. 

 
19. Sec. 102.6(V): Building Appearance 

As the project is for a refrigeration utility unit, these standards are not applicable. 

WAIVERS 

No waivers were requested as part of this application. 



 

Page 6 of 6 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the review of the project and all information in the record, staff recommends the 
following action: 

Approve the Site Plan and Conditional Use application of Main Street Grocery, dated through 
December 27, 2022, for the refrigeration unit addition at 5 Coastal Market Drive, subject to the 
following conditions: 

Conditions of Approval 

 Condition Staff 
Assigned 

Must be 
Completed By:   

1.  This approval is dependent upon and limited to the proposals 
and plans contained in the application and supporting 
documents submitted and affirmed to by the applicant.  Any 
variation from the plans, proposals and supporting documents 
are subject to the review and approval of the Planning Board 
prior to implementation. 

Town Planner Ongoing 

2.  Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall pay 
all outstanding review escrow account fees, post the necessary 
performance guarantee(s) in such amount(s) as established by the 
Town and hold a pre-construction meeting with the Town if 
necessary. 

Town Planner Prior to Issuing 
Building Permit  

3.  This Planning Board approval is valid for 12 months from the 
date of approval and shall expire if work has not substantially 
commenced within that time period.  

Code Officer Ongoing 

4.  The applicant shall secure a Building Permit from the Code 
Enforcement Officer in coordination with the Town Planner, 
Fire Department, and all relevant review authorities, prior to 
commencing any construction activities. 

Code Officer Prior to Issuing 
Building Permit 

5.  All noise associated with the proposed development shall be 
regulated in accordance with the provisions of Sec. 102.6. 
Applicants and their contractors are well-advised to familiarize 
themselves with that section of the Town’s Ordinances. 

Code Officer Ongoing 

 

  

Isabelle V. Oechslie 
Town Planner 
January 3, 2023 

 



DAMARISCOTTA PLANNING BOARD 
FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW,  

AND NOTICE OF DECISION 

Date: January 3, 2023 

 

 

Site Plan & Conditional Use Applications – Main Street Grocery 

5 Coastal Market Drive – Main Street Grocery 

PID #2205 

The Town of Damariscotta Planning Board issues the following Findings of Fact and Conclusions 
of Law at its duly-noticed meeting of January 3, 2023: 

A. The Planning Board considered the Project, the staff report, and received and considered all 
written and oral public comments on the Project which were submitted up to and at the time 
of the meeting for the Project; and 

B. Notices of the pending application were mailed on December 19, 2022 to 6 property owners 
abutting the subject property and were posted at the Town Office. No abutters objected to the 
application and therefore a public hearing is not required, per Sec. 102.5(G) of the 
Damariscotta Town Ordinances; and  

C. The project description is as follows:  

Main Street Grocery is proposing to install a new refrigeration system rack in a 8' wide x 20' 
long x 8.6' high Conex container with condenser to be located in the rear of the building at 5 
Coastal Market Drive (off of Main Street). The proposal is essentially a container that will hold 
refrigeration utilities currently located on the roof of the building; and  

D. The Project is subject to the following policies and standards of review:  

a. Chapter 102, Section 102.6: Performance Standards [Site Plan Review]; and 
b. Chapter 101, Section 101.9: Appeals and Conditional Uses. 

  



Page 2 

 

E. The core Project Data includes:  

Zoning: C-2 
Land Area: 3.02 acres 
Existing Land Use: Retail 
Proposed Land Use: No change 
 Allowed: Proposed: 
Max. Building Height: 40 feet 8.6 feet 
Min. Front Yard: 20 feet (or the average of 

existing setbacks on 
abutting properties) 

N/A – no change 

Min. Side Yard: 15 feet 15 feet 
Min. Rear Yard: 15 feet 12 feet (existing nonconformity) 
Min. Off-Street Parking*: 4 spaces for each 1,000 

s.f. of floor area 
N/A – no change 

 

F. Based on its review of the entire record herein, the Planning Board has determined that the 
Project meets the applicable policies and standards of review, and the Planning Board makes 
the following findings: 

1. Sec. 102.6(A): Preserve and Enhance the Landscape 
The bufferyard and area where the applicant plans to construct the addition is fully 
paved. Therefore, there are no natural areas to preserve within the footprint of the 
project that can be preserved. 

 
As the site is essentially built out and the addition is being added in a paved area, 
essential or significant wildlife habitats or fisheries are not anticipated to be directly 
impacted by the project. Therefore, the project as proposed meets the requirements of 
this section. 

 
2. Sec. 102.6(B): Relationship to Environment and Neighboring Buildings 

As demonstrated by the Project Data Table above, the proposed project is within all bulk 
and spacing requirements established in the Zoning District, except for the rear 
setbacks. The applicants have indicated that there was previously a trash compactor 
located in this location that was grandfathered (placed there before the Ordinance took 
effect), and Sec. 101.6(A)(1)(a) allows for a non-conformity to be repaired, maintained, 
and improved, provided that there is no expansion of the non-conformity. The trash 
compactor was approximately 10’ wide, which means that it encroached into the 
required setback area by 5’. The proposed utility structure for the refrigeration units is 8’ 
wide and will encroach into the setback area by 3’. This is less non-conforming that the 
trash compactor, and thus, this standard has been met. 
 
Furthermore, the project is compatible with the scale and type of development in the 
vicinity because it is a commercial building where the utility structures are located to the 
rear. 

 



Page 3 

 

As such, the project as designed meets the requirements of Sec. 102.4(B)(1) and (B)(2). 
The requirements of (B)(3) are limited to projects in the downtown commercial area, and 
thus are not applicable to this project. 

 
3. Sec. 102.6(C): Air Quality 

The refrigeration unit is not anticipated to emit dust, ash or smoke that would impact air 
quality. Therefore, this standard has been met. 
 

4. Sec. 102.6(D): Lighting and Glare 
As no exterior lighting is proposed with this application, this standard is not applicable. 
 

5. Sec. 102.6(E): Noise 
All noise once in operation will be required to adhere to the provisions of this section, 
including staying below the sound level limitations as described. For a project abutting a 
residential use (as this one does to the north and west), the sound level limits are 55 
dBA between the hours of 7 a.m. and 7 p.m. and 45 dBA between the hours of 7 p.m. 
and 7 a.m. Noise associated with construction is only allowed between the hours of 6:30 
a.m. and 8 p.m. Condition #5 reaffirms this requirement. 
 

6. Sec. 102.6(F), (G), (H), and (I): Traffic, Circulation, and Access 

Trips 

Additional trips are not anticipated to be generated as a result of this addition. Therefore, 
this standard is not applicable. 

Access 

There is currently a gravel access drive to the rear of the building to allow for dumpster 
pickup. As the structure will be less non-conforming than the previous structure, allowing 
for more space between the property line and the proposed building, this standard has 
been met. 

Given the lack of additional traffic generated by this project and the capacity and design 
of the roadways connected to the site, the project will not cause unreasonable public 
road congestion or unsafe conditions on private or public ways, consistent with the 
requirements of Section 102.6(F) and (G). 

Parking 

Changes to the number of parking spaces are not proposed with this application. 
Therefore, parking standards are not applicable to this project. 

  



Page 4 

 

7. Sec. 102.6(J): Existing Public Utilities and Services 
The expansion of the refrigeration unit is not anticipated to generate additional sewage. 
Therefore, the project meets the requirements for adequate sewage waste disposal. 
 
The expansion of the refrigeration unit is not anticipated to generate additional solid 
waste; therefore, the project is consistent with this section. 
 
Additionally, the Fire Department has reviewed the project to ensure that emergency 
access will be appropriate. No concerns have been raised. 
 

8. Sec. 102.6(K): Water Quality 
The proposed project will not adversely affect the quality or quantity of groundwater, 
consistent with Sec. 102.6(K) and Sec. 102.6(L), governing the Stormwater 
Management Plan. A detailed discussion of wetland impacts is provided in item 12 
below. 

 
9. Sec. 102.6(L): Stormwater Management 

As the refrigeration unit is being installed in an already developed area of the site, 
additional stormwater impact is not anticipated as a result of this project. 

10. Sec. 102.6(M): Erosion & Sediment Control 
As the unit is being placed on an already developed area, thus, additional erosion and 
sediment control provisions are not required. 
 

11. Sec. 102.6(N): Water Supply 
Additional water is not needed as part of this application. 
 

12. Sec. 102.6(O): Natural Beauty 
Wetlands, trees, and natural beauty will not be impacted by the proposed development, 
as the project is located within an already developed area of the site. 
 

13. Sec. 102.6(P): Historic and Archeological Resources 
No documented archeological or historic resources will be impacted by the proposal. 
Therefore, this standard has been met. 
 

14. Sec. 102.6(Q): Filling and Excavation 
All excavation will be incidental to the proposed development and are not part of an 
excavation or filling operation. Thus, this standard is not applicable to this project. 
 

15. Sec. 102.6(R): Sewage Disposal 
Additional sewer impact is not anticipated as a result of this proposal. Therefore, this 
standard is not applicable. 
 

16. Sec. 102.6(S): Phosphorus Control 
The subject property is not located within the watershed of a great pond; therefore, this 
standard is not applicable. 
 

17. Sec. 102.6(T): Buffer Areas 
As these standards pertain buffers between incompatible uses, and the adjacent use is 
also a retail use (Hancock Lumber), these standards are not applicable. 

 



Page 5 

 

18. Sec. 102.6(U): Signs 
No additional signage is proposed with this application; therefore, these standards are 
not applicable. 

 
19. Sec. 102.6(V): Building Appearance 

As the project is for a refrigeration utility unit, these standards are not applicable. 
 

G. The applicant has not requested any waivers of the relevant review standards. 

DECISION: 

H. Based on its review of the entire record herein, including the January 3, 2023 Planning Board 
staff report; all supporting, referenced, and incorporated documents; and all comments 
received; the Site Plan and Conditional Use Application of Main Street Grocery, dated through 
December 27, 2022, for the refrigeration unit addition at 5 Coastal Market Drive; is hereby 

 

 YAE NAE Absent/Abstain 

DENIED    

APPROVED WITH THE CONDITIONS BELOW     

CONDITIONS 

 Condition Staff 
Assigned 

Must be 
Completed By:   

1.  This approval is dependent upon and limited to the proposals 
and plans contained in the application and supporting 
documents submitted and affirmed to by the applicant.  Any 
variation from the plans, proposals and supporting documents 
are subject to the review and approval of the Planning Board 
prior to implementation. 

Town 
Planner 

Ongoing 

2.  Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall 
pay all outstanding review escrow account fees, post the 
necessary performance guarantee(s) in such amount(s) as 
established by the Town and hold a pre-construction meeting 
with the Town if necessary. 

Town 
Planner 

Prior to Issuing 
Building Permit  

3.  This Planning Board approval is valid for 12 months from the 
date of approval and shall expire if work has not substantially 
commenced within that time period.  

Code Officer Ongoing 



Page 6 

 

 Condition Staff 
Assigned 

Must be 
Completed By:   

4.  The applicant shall secure a Building Permit from the Code 
Enforcement Officer in coordination with the Town Planner, 
Fire Department, and all relevant review authorities, prior to 
commencing any construction activities. 

Code Officer Prior to Issuing 
Building Permit 

5.  All noise associated with the proposed development shall be 
regulated in accordance with the provisions of Sec. 102.6. 
Applicants and their contractors are well-advised to familiarize 
themselves with that section of the Town’s Ordinances. 

Code Officer Ongoing 

Planning Board Signatures: 

 

__________________________________________ 
 

 
__________________________________________ 

 
 

__________________________________________ 
 

 
__________________________________________ 

 
 

__________________________________________ 

















12/27/22, 4:49 PM Town of Damariscotta Maine Mail - Re: Site Plans

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=74abc5d206&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1753402595169025560%7Cmsg-f%3A1753403114259… 1/2

Isabelle Oechslie <ioechslie@damariscottame.com>

Re: Site Plans
1 message

Maine Market Refrigeration <mainemktrefrigeration@msn.com> Tue, Dec 27, 2022 at 4:11 PM
To: Julia Small <MainStreetGrocery@outlook.com>, Isabelle Oechslie <ioechslie@damariscottame.com>

Isabelle,

Following up from our meeting - to clarify what is being completed at Main Street Grocery is setting a 20 x 8‘ x 8‘ six high
shipping container which is being used as the mechanical room with condenser installed on top of shipping container and
the low & medium compressor rack being installed within the container along with the electrical control panel. This will be
certain place where the former trash compactor/baler which had been sitting, which is a smaller footprint.

Cordialità,
Rachael C Littler
Office Manager
Maine Market Refrigeration, LLC
https://mainemarketrefrigeration.com/
98 Morris Springer Road, Fayette, ME 04349-3709
Office: 207.685.3504
 

Get Outlook for iOS

From: Julia Small <MainStreetGrocery@outlook.com>
Sent: Tuesday, December 27, 2022 4:03 PM
To: Isabelle Oechslie <ioechslie@damariscottame.com>; Maine Market Refrigera�on <mainemktrefrigeration@msn.com>
Subject: Fwd: Site Plans
 

Get Outlook for iOS

From: Wetherbee, Katherine <katie.wetherbee@wsdevelopment.com>
Sent: Tuesday, December 27, 2022 4:01:35 PM

https://eur04.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fmainemarketrefrigeration.com%2F&data=02%7C01%7C%7C8646c5f53dd9422e6d5908d858b44a1d%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637356878641239286&sdata=ZnLO%2BsGwJ3veycupqZkFPAiaxyHafo%2FaS%2FeTf9DxPUw%3D&reserved=0
https://aka.ms/o0ukef
mailto:MainStreetGrocery@outlook.com
mailto:ioechslie@damariscottame.com
mailto:mainemktrefrigeration@msn.com
https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Faka.ms%2Fo0ukef&data=05%7C01%7C%7Cbd487f591ccb404ac84b08dae84dd46c%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C638077718227188310%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=4nGOc7kRyrr5lEdgIBDBxstStAnzQLUNgCXbNta35eY%3D&reserved=0
mailto:katie.wetherbee@wsdevelopment.com


12/27/22, 4:49 PM Town of Damariscotta Maine Mail - Re: Site Plans

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=74abc5d206&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1753402595169025560%7Cmsg-f%3A1753403114259… 2/2

To: Julia Small <MainStreetGrocery@outlook.com>
Subject: Site Plans
 
 
 
WSDEVELOPMENT
KATIE WETHERBEE
VICE PRESIDENT, ASSET STRATEGY AND DEVELOPMENT
 
M 857-225-6525

KATIE.WETHERBEE@WSDEVELOPMENT.COM

 

33 BOYLSTON STREET CHESTNUT HILL MA 02467

WSDEVELOPMENT.COM

 

Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the recipient and
others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or
taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by Mimecast, a leader in email
security and cyber resilience. Mimecast integrates email defenses with brand protection, security awareness training, web
security, compliance and other essential capabilities. Mimecast helps protect large and small organizations from malicious activity,
human error and technology failure; and to lead the movement toward building a more resilient world. To find out more, visit our
website.

mailto:MainStreetGrocery@outlook.com
mailto:KATIE.WETHERBEE@WSDEVELOPMENT.COM
https://www.google.com/maps/search/33+BOYLSTON+STREET+CHESTNUT+HILL+MA+02467?entry=gmail&source=g
http://wsdevelopment.com/




 
 

Planning Department 
Damariscotta Town Office 
21 School Street, 
Damariscotta, ME 04543 

Isabelle Oechslie 
Town Planner 

Phone: (207) 563-5168 
IOechslie@damariscottame.com  

 

 
AGENDA ITEM #3B 

Meeting of January 3, 2023 

Site Plan Amendment – Damariscotta Information Bureau 

276 Main Street – Damariscotta Region Chamber of Commerce 
PID #2207 

INTRODUCTION 

Applicant Damariscotta Region Chamber of Commerce is proposing to amend their previously 
approved Site Plan (approved January 3, 2022) in order to install a holding tank for the collection of 
sewage, rather than tie into the public sewer as previously proposed. The parcel is further identified 
as Assessor’s Tax Map 6, Lot 117 and it is located within the C-2 Zoning District. 

 
 
Notices of the pending application were mailed on December 27, 2022 to 5 property owners 
abutting the subject property and to the applicant, and were posted at the Town Office. No abutters 
objected to the application and therefore a public hearing is not required, per Sec. 102.5(G) of the 
Damariscotta Town Ordinances.  

This submission is being reviewed pursuant to Chapter 102, Sec. 102.6: Performance Standards [Site 
Plan Review].  

mailto:IOechslie@damariscottame.com


 

Page 2 of 6 
 

SUBMISSION CHRONOLOGY 

Original Approval Pre-Application Date:  December 6, 2021 

Originally Approved by Planning Board:   January 3, 2022 

Amendment Application Submitted:  December 27, 2022 

PROJECT DATA 

Zoning: C-2 
Land Area: 0.10 acres 
Existing Land Use: Vacant 
Proposed Land Use: Civic and social organization / Office 
 Allowed: Proposed: 
Max. Building Height: 40 feet N/A – no change 
Min. Front Yard: 20 feet N/A – no change 
Min. Side Yard: 15 feet N/A – no change 
Min. Rear Yard: 15 feet N/A – no change 

 

REVIEW PROCESS 

The application to renovate the existing building at 276 Main Street for use as the Chamber’s 
Information Bureau was approved by the Planning Board on January 3, 2022. During the course of 
construction, the applicant’s contractor has discovered that there are a variety of constraints 
preventing the connection of this building to the public sewer lines located in Vine Street. The 
applicants have indicated that they have analyzed potential alternatives, but that a holding tank is 
ultimately what works best for the site and their budget at this time. The applicant’s contractor will 
be available at the meeting to answer any questions that the Board might have. 

ANALYSIS OF PROJECT 

Site Plan Review is subject to the standards of Chapter 102, Sec. 102.6: Performance Standards. As 
this is an amendment to a previously approved plan specific to the changing from public sewer 
connection to a holding tank, many standards are not applicable. 

Staff’s analysis of the Site Plan standards are organized by topic below, with references to the 
corresponding provisions.  

1. Sec. 102.6(A): Preserve and Enhance the Landscape 
Changes to the bufferyard or to the previously approved landscaping plan are not proposed 
with this application. 

 
Per Condition #8, only the topsoil directly affected by buildings, access, and parking areas 
may be removed from the site. Therefore, the project as designed and conditioned meets the 
requirements of this section. 



 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 
2. Sec. 102.6(B): Relationship to Environment and Neighboring Buildings 

Changes to the building and buffers from parking areas are not proposed with this 
amendment application, therefore, this standard is not applicable. 

 
3. Sec. 102.6(C): Air Quality 

The proposed holding tank will not emit dust, ash, or smoke. Proper and regular cleaning 
will be required in order to mitigate odor concerns, which the applicants are aware of.  
 

4. Sec. 102.6(D): Lighting and Glare 
No changes to exterior lighting are proposed with this application, therefore, this standard is 
not applicable. 
 

5. Sec. 102.6(E): Noise 
All noise during construction and once in operation will be required to adhere to the 
provisions of this section, including staying below the sound level limitations as described. 
For a project abutting commercial uses, the sound level limits are 65 dBA between the hours 
of 7AM and 7PM, and 55 dBA between the hours of 7PM and 7AM (though construction 
noise is allowed between 6:30AM and 8:00PM, in accordance with this section). Condition 
#6 reaffirms this requirement. 
 

6. Sec. 102.6(F), (G), (H), and (I): Traffic, Circulation, and Access 
Changes to traffic, access, and parking are not proposed with this application. Therefore, 
these standards are not applicable. 

7. Sec. 102.6(J): Existing Public Utilities and Services 
Sewage disposal is discussed in detail under Item 15, below. There are no changes to any 
other utilities as a result of this amendment, therefore the remaining standards are not 
applicable. 
 

8. Sec. 102.6(K): Water Quality 
The proposed project will not adversely affect the quality or quantity of groundwater, 
consistent with Sec. 102.6(K) and Sec. 102.6(L), governing the previously approved 
Stormwater Management Plan. A detailed discussion of wetland impacts is provided in item 
12 below. 
 

9. Sec. 102.6(L): Stormwater Management 
Changes to stormwater management are not proposed or needed as part of this amendment. 
Therefore, this standard is not applicable. 

10. Sec. 102.6(M): Erosion & Sediment Control 
Changes to the previously approved Erosion and Sedimentation control measures are not 
proposed or required as part of this application, therefore, this standard is not applicable. 
 

11. Sec. 102.6(N): Water Supply 
No changes to the previously approved method for receiving water (public water) are 
proposed with this amendment application. Therefore, this standard is not applicable to this 
application. 



 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 
12. Sec. 102.6(O): Natural Beauty 

Changes to the natural beauty of the site will not be impacted by this amendment. Therefore, 
this standard has been met. 
 

13. Sec. 102.6(P): Historic and Archeological Resources 
Changes to identified historic or archeological resources are not anticipated as part of this 
amendment application, as the property is not on the National Register of Historic Places 
nor located within the Town’s local historic district. The presence of archeological resources 
has not been documented on this property. Therefore, this standard has been met. 
 

14. Sec. 102.6(Q): Filling and Excavation 
All excavation will be incidental to the proposed development and are not part of an 
excavation or filling operation. Thus, this standard is not applicable to this project. 
 

15. Sec. 102.6(R): Sewage Disposal 
As the subject property is within 200 feet of the existing public sewer system, Section 
102.6(R)(2) requires that the applicant extend the existing sewer system to their project and 
tie into it. However, the applicants have indicated that this is not feasible due to constraints 
with digging into Vine Street (namely, the presence of ledge as well as the location of fiber 
optic cable within Vine Street that would be difficult to dig around in order to reach the 
sewer system). Alternatively, the applicants considered tying into the private sewer systems 
of their neighbors (which connects into the public sewer system further up Main Street), but 
the neighbors would not allow this, per conversations with the applicants. 
 
Thus, the applicants have asked for a waiver of this section in order to allow them to install a 
holding tank instead. The plan has been updated to show the area where the holding tank 
will be installed. Condition #4 requires that the Town’s Plumbing Inspector (in this case, the 
Code Enforcement Officer) review the Subsurface Wastewater Disposal System Application 
to ensure compliance with the State’s Subsurface Wastewater Disposal Rules. 
 

16. Sec. 102.6(S): Phosphorus Control 
The subject property is not located within the watershed of a great pond, therefore this 
standard is not applicable. 
 

17. Sec. 102.6(T): Buffer Areas 
Changes to the previously approved buffer areas are not proposed or required as part of this 
application, therefore, this standard is not applicable. 

 
18. Sec. 102.6(U): Signs 

Changes to signage are not proposed with this amendment application, therefore this 
standard is not applicable. 

 
19. Sec. 102.6(V): Building Appearance 

No changes to the building appearance are proposed with this amendment application, 
therefore this standard is not applicable. 



 

Page 5 of 6 
 

WAIVERS 

The applicant requests the following waivers for the project:  

1. Waiver pursuant to Site Plan Review Ordinance Section 102.6(R)(2) in order to install a 
holding tank rather than connecting into the public sewer system.  

Analysis: Staff is supportive of this waiver request. The applicant’s contractor has 
provided information regarding the presence of ledge and has cited concerns 
regarding the location of fiber optic cable within Vine Street that would be difficult 
to dig around in order to reach the sewer system. Alternatively, the applicants 
considered tying into the private sewer systems of their neighbors (which connects 
into the public sewer system further up Main Street), but the neighbors would not 
allow this, per conversations with the applicants. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the review of the project and all information in the record, staff recommends the 
following action: 

Approve the Site Plan Amendment application of the Damariscotta Region Chamber of Commerce, 
dated through December 27, 2022, for the Damariscotta Information Bureau at 276 Main Street, 
and grant the requested waivers, subject to the following conditions:  

Conditions of Approval 

 Condition Staff 
Assigned 

Must be 
Completed By:   

1.  This approval is dependent upon and limited to the proposals and 
plans contained in the application and supporting documents 
submitted and affirmed to by the applicant.  Any variation from the 
plans, proposals and supporting documents are subject to the 
review and approval of the Planning Board prior to 
implementation. 

Town 
Planner 

Ongoing 

2.  All adopted conditions of approval and any waivers granted shall 
appear on the face of the plans submitted for building permits, and 
the face of the subdivision plan, if applicable. 

Code 
Officer 

Prior to Issuing 
Building Permit 

3.  This Planning Board approval is valid for 12 months from the date 
of approval and shall expire if work has not substantially 
commenced within that time period.  

Code 
Officer 

Ongoing 

4.  The applicant shall secure a Subsurface Wastewater Disposal 
System permit from the Local Plumbing Inspector (the Code 
Enforcement Officer) prior to installing the holding tank. The 
Plumbing Inspector shall verify compliance with the State’s 
Subsurface Wastewater Disposal Rules. 

Code 
Officer 

Prior to 
Installation of 
Holding Tank 



 

Page 6 of 6 
 

 Condition Staff 
Assigned 

Must be 
Completed By:   

5.  A waiver has been granted pursuant to Section 102.6(R)(2), which 
allows the applicants to install a holding tank for septic disposal 
rather than connecting to the public sewer system.  

Town 
Planner 

Ongoing 

6.  All noise associated with the proposed development shall be 
regulated in accordance with the provisions of Sec. 102.6. 
Applicants and their contractors are well-advised to familiarize 
themselves with that section of the Town’s Ordinances. 

Code 
Officer 

Ongoing 

 
Isabelle V. Oechslie 
Town Planner 
January 3, 2023 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Attachment [1]  Application (received 12/27/2022) 
Attachment [2]  Originally approved Utility Plan (dated 1/3/2022) 



DAMARISCOTTA PLANNING BOARD 
FINDINGS OF FACT AND NOTICE OF DECISION 

Date: January 3, 2023 

 

 

Site Plan Amendment – Damariscotta Information Bureau 

276 Main Street – Damariscotta Region Chamber of Commerce 

PID #2207 

The Town of Damariscotta Planning Board issues the following Findings of Fact and Conclusions 
of Law at its duly-noticed meeting of January 3, 2023: 

A. The Planning Board considered the Project, the staff report, and received and considered all 
written and oral public comments on the Project which were submitted up to and at the time 
of the public hearings for the Project; and 

B. Notices of the pending application were mailed on December 27, 2022 to 5 property owners 
abutting the subject property and to the applicant, and were posted at the Town Office. No 
abutters objected to the application and therefore a public hearing is not required, per Sec. 
102.5(G) of the Damariscotta Town Ordinances; and  

C. The project description is as follows:  

Applicant Damariscotta Region Chamber of Commerce is proposing to amend their previously 
approved Site Plan (approved January 3, 2022) in order to install a holding tank for the 
collection of sewage, rather than tie into the public sewer as previously proposed; and  

D. The Project is subject to the following policies and standards of review:  

a. Chapter 102, Sec. 102.6: Performance Standards 

E. The core Project Data includes:  

Zoning: C-2 
Land Area: 0.10 acres 
Existing Land Use: Vacant 
Proposed Land Use: Civic and social organization / Office 
 Allowed: Proposed: 
Max. Building Height: 40 feet N/A – no change 
Min. Front Yard: 20 feet N/A – no change 
Min. Side Yard: 15 feet N/A – no change 
Min. Rear Yard: 15 feet N/A – no change 

  



 

Page 2 

 

F. Based on its review of the entire record herein, the Planning Board has determined that the 
Project meets the applicable policies and standards of review, and the Planning Board makes 
the following findings: 

1. Sec. 102.6(A): Preserve and Enhance the Landscape 
Changes to the bufferyard or to the previously approved landscaping plan are not 
proposed with this application. 

 
Per Condition #8, only the topsoil directly affected by buildings, access, and parking 
areas may be removed from the site. Therefore, the project as designed and conditioned 
meets the requirements of this section. 

 
2. Sec. 102.6(B): Relationship to Environment and Neighboring Buildings 

Changes to the building and buffers from parking areas are not proposed with this 
amendment application, therefore, this standard is not applicable. 

 
3. Sec. 102.6(C): Air Quality 

The proposed holding tank will not emit dust, ash, or smoke. Proper and regular cleaning 
will be required in order to mitigate odor concerns, which the applicants are aware of.  
 

4. Sec. 102.6(D): Lighting and Glare 
No changes to exterior lighting are proposed with this application, therefore, this 
standard is not applicable. 
 

5. Sec. 102.6(E): Noise 
All noise during construction and once in operation will be required to adhere to the 
provisions of this section, including staying below the sound level limitations as 
described. For a project abutting commercial uses, the sound level limits are 65 dBA 
between the hours of 7AM and 7PM, and 55 dBA between the hours of 7PM and 7AM 
(though construction noise is allowed between 6:30AM and 8:00PM, in accordance with 
this section). Condition #6 reaffirms this requirement. 
 

6. Sec. 102.6(F), (G), (H), and (I): Traffic, Circulation, and Access 

Changes to traffic, access, and parking are not proposed with this application. Therefore, 
these standards are not applicable. 

7. Sec. 102.6(J): Existing Public Utilities and Services 
Sewage disposal is discussed in detail under Item 15, below. There are no changes to 
any other utilities as a result of this amendment, therefore the remaining standards are 
not applicable. 
 

8. Sec. 102.6(K): Water Quality 
The proposed project will not adversely affect the quality or quantity of groundwater, 
consistent with Sec. 102.6(K) and Sec. 102.6(L), governing the previously approved 
Stormwater Management Plan. A detailed discussion of wetland impacts is provided in 
item 12 below. 

  



 

Page 3 

 

 
9. Sec. 102.6(L): Stormwater Management 

Changes to stormwater management are not proposed or needed as part of this 
amendment. Therefore, this standard is not applicable. 

10. Sec. 102.6(M): Erosion & Sediment Control 
Changes to the previously approved Erosion and Sedimentation control measures are 
not proposed or required as part of this application, therefore, this standard is not 
applicable. 
 

11. Sec. 102.6(N): Water Supply 
No changes to the previously approved method for receiving water (public water) are 
proposed with this amendment application. Therefore, this standard is not applicable to 
this application. 
 

12. Sec. 102.6(O): Natural Beauty 
Changes to the natural beauty of the site will not be impacted by this amendment. 
Therefore, this standard has been met. 
 

13. Sec. 102.6(P): Historic and Archeological Resources 
Changes to identified historic or archeological resources are not anticipated as part of 
this amendment application, as the property is not on the National Register of Historic 
Places nor located within the Town’s local historic district. The presence of archeological 
resources has not been documented on this property. Therefore, this standard has been 
met. 
 

14. Sec. 102.6(Q): Filling and Excavation 
All excavation will be incidental to the proposed development and are not part of an 
excavation or filling operation. Thus, this standard is not applicable to this project. 
 

15. Sec. 102.6(R): Sewage Disposal 
As the subject property is within 200 feet of the existing public sewer system, Section 
102.6(R)(2) requires that the applicant extend the existing sewer system to their project 
and tie into it. However, the applicants have indicated that this is not feasible due to 
constraints with digging into Vine Street (namely, the presence of ledge as well as the 
location of fiber optic cable within Vine Street that would be difficult to dig around in 
order to reach the sewer system). Alternatively, the applicants considered tying into the 
private sewer systems of their neighbors (which connects into the public sewer system 
further up Main Street), but the neighbors would not allow this, per conversations with 
the applicants. 
 
Thus, the applicants have asked for a waiver of this section in order to allow them to 
install a holding tank instead. The plan has been updated to show the area where the 
holding tank will be installed. Condition #4 requires that the Town’s Plumbing Inspector 
(in this case, the Code Enforcement Officer) review the Subsurface Wastewater 
Disposal System Application to ensure compliance with the State’s Subsurface 
Wastewater Disposal Rules. 
 

16. Sec. 102.6(S): Phosphorus Control 
The subject property is not located within the watershed of a great pond, therefore this 
standard is not applicable. 



 

Page 4 

 

 
17. Sec. 102.6(T): Buffer Areas 

Changes to the previously approved buffer areas are not proposed or required as part of 
this application, therefore, this standard is not applicable. 

 
18. Sec. 102.6(U): Signs 

Changes to signage are not proposed with this amendment application, therefore this 
standard is not applicable. 

 
19. Sec. 102.6(V): Building Appearance 

No changes to the building appearance are proposed with this amendment application, 
therefore this standard is not applicable. 

G. The Planning Board granted a waiver pursuant to to Site Plan Review Ordinance Section 
102.6(R)(2) in order to install a holding tank rather than connecting into the public sewer 
system. The Planning Board granted this waiver based upon information provided by the 
applicant’s contractor regarding the presence of ledge the location of fiber optic cable within 
Vine Street that would be difficult to dig around in order to reach the sewer system. 
Alternatively, the applicants considered tying into the private sewer systems of their neighbors 
(which connects into the public sewer system further up Main Street), but the neighbors would 
not allow this, per conversations with the applicants. 

 

DECISION: 

H. Based on its review of the entire record herein, including the January 3, 2023 Planning Board 
staff report; all supporting, referenced, and incorporated documents; and all comments 
received; the Site Plan Amendment application of the Damariscotta Region Chamber of 
Commerce, dated through December 27, 2022, for the Damariscotta Information Bureau at 
276 Main Street; is hereby 

 

 YAE NAE Absent/Abstain 

DENIED    

APPROVED WITH THE CONDITIONS BELOW     

 

  



 

Page 5 

 

CONDITIONS 

 Condition Staff 
Assigned 

Must be 
Completed By:   

1.  This approval is dependent upon and limited to the proposals 
and plans contained in the application and supporting 
documents submitted and affirmed to by the applicant.  Any 
variation from the plans, proposals and supporting documents 
are subject to the review and approval of the Planning Board 
prior to implementation. 

Town 
Planner 

Ongoing 

2.  All adopted conditions of approval and any waivers granted 
shall appear on the face of the plans submitted for building 
permits, and the face of the subdivision plan, if applicable. 

Code Officer Prior to Issuing 
Building Permit 

3.  This Planning Board approval is valid for 12 months from the 
date of approval and shall expire if work has not substantially 
commenced within that time period.  

Code Officer Ongoing 

4.  The applicant shall secure a Subsurface Wastewater Disposal 
System permit from the Local Plumbing Inspector (the Code 
Enforcement Officer) prior to installing the holding tank. The 
Plumbing Inspector shall verify compliance with the State’s 
Subsurface Wastewater Disposal Rules. 

Code Officer Prior to 
Installation of 
Holding Tank 

5.  A waiver has been granted pursuant to Section 102.6(R)(2), 
which allows the applicants to install a holding tank for septic 
disposal rather than connecting to the public sewer system.  

Town 
Planner 

Ongoing 

6.  All noise associated with the proposed development shall be 
regulated in accordance with the provisions of Sec. 102.6. 
Applicants and their contractors are well-advised to familiarize 
themselves with that section of the Town’s Ordinances. 

Code Officer Ongoing 

Planning Board Signatures: 

 

__________________________________________ 
 

 
__________________________________________ 

 
 

__________________________________________ 
 



 

Page 6 

 

 
__________________________________________ 

 
 

__________________________________________ 







































FLAGPOLE

16" MAPLE
8" ASH

10" CHERRY

12" CHERRY

18" MAPLE

18" MAPLE

O
H

O
H

O
H

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH

OH
OH

OH

CMP 2

4"

6"

CLUSTER

4"4"

CLUSTER

OH

OH

OH

OH
SMALL DECID.

50

50

48

49

49

4
5

50

46

47

48

49

4
5 4
4

4
4

44
4
5

46

47
48

49

49
46

47

4849

50
49

45

43

44

46

47

4849

4
5

4
64
7

4
8

48

48

49

46
47

4849

JANET R. FOWLE
JOHN E. FOWLE

BOOK 5500, PAGE 20
TAX MAP 6, LOT 106

TIDEWATER
TELECOM, INC.

10 VINE STREET
BOOK 1062, PAGE 220
TAX MAP 6, LOT 107

VINE STREET

CHURCH STREET
INV.=41.8'

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

1-3-22

PROJ. NO.

GNIYEVRUSENGINEERING& orskyDartleyG
CAMDEN, MAINE (207) 236-4365

DAMARISCOTTA, MAINE   (207) 790-5005
WWW.GARTLEYDORSKY.COM

H
:\L

an
d 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 3
\2

0
4
5
7
\D

ra
w
in

gs
\2

0
4
5
7
 C

1
.d

w
g

DAMARISCOTTA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

SK1

SCHEMATIC UTILITY CONNECTION PLAN

JANUARY 3, 2022 2020-457

EW

S

N

N
A

D
 8

3

M
A

G
N

E
T

IC
 2014

M
E

 E
A

ST
 Z

O
N

E
N

A
D

 8
3

NOTES:
1) GARTLEY & DORSKY ENGINEERING & SURVEYING, INC IS COORDINATING
WITH THE GREAT SALT BAY SANITARY DISTRICT ON UTILITY CONNECTIONS.



 

Planning Department 
Damariscotta Town Office 
21 School Street, 
Damariscotta, ME 04543 

Isabelle Oechslie 
Town Planner 

Phone: (207) 563-5168 
IOechslie@damariscottame.com  

AGENDA ITEM #4A 
Meeting of January 3, 2023 

Site Plan & Conditional Use Applications – Clippership Landing Nursing Home 

Piper Mill Road – Clippership Landing Development, LLC 
PID #2201 

INTRODUCTION 

Applicant Clippership Landing Development, LLC is requesting Site Plan review in order to 
construct a 102 bed nursing care facility and associated site improvements (including parking areas 
and two curb cuts, stormwater management facilities, and courtyard areas and path systems for the 
enjoyment of residents of the facility). The parcel is further identified as Assessor’s Tax Map 1, Lot 
50 and it is located within the Rural Zoning District and the Town’s designed Village Expansion 
Growth Area, per the 2014 Comprehensive Plan.  

As the total floor area proposed is greater than 7,500 s.f. (pursuant to Sec. 102.5(G) of the 
Damariscotta Town Ordinances), a public hearing was required to be held on this application. Legal 
advertisements regarding this public hearing appeared in the Lincoln County News on October 27, 
2022 and November 3, 2022, and were mailed to 22 property owners within 250’ of the subject 
property and were posted at the Town Office on October 24, 2022. The public hearing was 
continued from the November 7, 2022 meeting of the Planning Board. 

mailto:IOechslie@damariscottame.com


Page 2 of 18 

This submission is being reviewed pursuant to Chapter 102, Sec. 102.6: Performance Standards [Site 
Plan Review] and Chapter 102, Sec. 102.7: Large-Scale Development Standards [Site Plan Review]. 
Additionally, as nursing care facilities are a conditional use within the Rural Zoning District, the 
standards of Sec. 101.9: Appeals and Conditional Uses must be met. 

SUBMISSION CHRONOLOGY 

Application Received: September 19, 2022 

Pre-Application Date: August 1, 2022 

Deemed Complete for Planning Board: October 19, 2022 

Planning Board Meeting Dates: November 7, 2022 (public hearing opened), 
December 5, 2022 (public hearing closed) 

PROJECT DATA 

Zoning: Rural 
Land Area: 19.98 acres (proposed to be subdivided further) 
Existing Land Use: Vacant 
Proposed Land Use: Nursing care facility 

Allowed: Proposed: 
Max. Building Height: 35 feet 29.7’ at highest ridgeline 
Min. Front Yard Building 
Setback: 

20 feet ~120’ at closest point 

Min. Side Yard Building 
Setback: 

15 feet ~40’ at closest point 

Min. Rear Yard Building 
Setback: 

15 feet ~90’ at closest point 

Min. Water Setback: 100 feet from abutting 
stream 

~120’ at closest point (on 
proposed maintenance garage) 

Min. Off-Street Parking*: 34 spaces (1 space for every 
3 rooms) 

103 spaces, including 9 spaces for 
people with disabilities 

*Pursuant to 102.6(H)(7)(i).



 

Page 3 of 18 
 

REVIEW PROCESS 

This project initially came before the Planning Board for sketch (conceptual) plan review during the 
Planning Board’s meeting on August 1, 2022. Subsequently, the Planning Board held a site walk of 
the subject property on August 18, 2022 alongside the applicants and members of the public. As 
part of this development, Minor Subdivision review is also required to amend the 2019 subdivision 
plan of the property. The Planning Board held a public hearing on the Minor Subdivision 
application and ultimately voted to approve the Minor Subdivision application during their meeting 
on November 7, 2022. 

Also, during the November 7, 2022 meeting, the Planning Board opened the public hearing on the 
Site Plan and Conditional Use applications. Based upon the public comment received as well as 
deliberation amongst themselves, the Planning Board suspended the public hearing until the 
December meeting of the Board and tasked the applicants with providing the following items: 

 Information on the sight distances from Piper Mill Road onto School Street 

 Provide information on the accidents at School Street and Bristol Road intersection 

 Provide visual renderings of how the proposed building will look from School Street, from 
Piper Mill Road, and from surrounding properties (including the proposed landscaping) 

The applicants provided this information in a supplemental packet, which was posted alongside the 
December 5, 2022 meeting packet on the Town’s website here. The packet for the November 7, 
2022 meeting, which includes the information previously reviewed by the Board, is available on the 
Town’s website at this link. 

For this meeting, the applicants have provided supplemental information dated December 23, 2022 
and which is attached in this packet. Also available in this packet is information from Maine 
Municipal Association’s Legal Services team regarding a question that I received asking for 
clarification about the classification of the use of this project, which has been reviewed by staff as a 
Nursing Care Facility in accordance with the definitions found in Sec. 101.4 of the Town’s Land Use 
Ordinance.  

Finally, I have received a number of comments from community members since the Planning Board 
closed the public hearing on December 5th, and have included those in this packet for the Board’s 
knowledge. 

  

https://www.damariscottame.com/sites/g/files/vyhlif4311/f/agendas/pb_packet_12.05.2022.pdf
https://www.damariscottame.com/planning-board/agenda/planning-board-agenda-packet-23


 

Page 4 of 18 
 

ANALYSIS OF PROJECT 

Site Plan review is subject to the standards of review outlined in Sec. 102.6: Performance Standards. 
As the project is proposing a floor area of greater than 20,000 s.f., the requirements of Sec. 102.7: 
Large-Scale Development will also apply. Finally, as the project is proposing a Nursing Care Facility 
(a Conditional Use in the Rural Zoning District), the standards outlined in Sec. 101.9: Appeals and 
Conditional Uses must be met. 
 
Staff’s analysis of the Site Plan, Large Scale-Development, and Conditional Use standards are 
organized by topic below, with references to the corresponding provisions. The applicants have 
provided a supplemental information packet intended to respond to concerns from both the 
Planning Board and members of the public identified during the November 7, 2022 meeting. 
Additional information has been summarized in this packet in red. 

Site Plan Standards 
 

1. Sec. 102.6(A): Preserve and Enhance the Landscape 
The bufferyard is the area at the perimeter 
of the property encompassing the Town’s 
building setback requirements and the 
existing or planted vegetation, fencing, 
walls or berms located within the area. Per 
the standards outlined in this section, the 
only development permitted within the 
bufferyard is required landscaping and 
fencing, landscape lighting, essential 
utilities that cannot be located outside of 
the buffer because of site constraints, 
passive stormwater filtration areas, and 
points of ingress and egress as authorized 
by the Planning Board. Within the 
bufferyard, the applicants are proposing to 
locate the fire access drive. Additionally, 
the corner of a stormwater filtration area is 
located within the buffer yard. See Figure 
1. As noted, these are exempt and thus, in 
staff’s view, this standard has been met.  
 
The applicants have indicated that the 
building has been sited in such a way as to 
preserve the landscape and existing 
topography of the site to the maximum extent practical. The building is centrally located to 
allow for natural vegetation to be retained in the buffer yards of the property. Additionally, a 
landscape plan has been submitted which shows approximately 150 new tree plantings, 
intended to shield the new development from abutting properties and from public streets. 
Photo renderings of the proposed building and site have been provided by the 
applicants in a packet of supplemental materials dated November 23, 2022. The 
landscaping plan is further described in item #24 below. 

Figure 1 



 

Page 5 of 18 
 

 
A letter from the Maine Department of Inland Fisheries & Wildlife submitted with the 
application indicates that three bat species which are protected under Maine’s Endangered 
Species Act (including the little brown bat, northern long-eared bat, and eastern small-footed 
bat) may be present on the site during their migration and/or during the breeding season. 
However, the IF&W noted that they do not anticipate significant impacts to any of the bat 
species as part of this project. Still, to prevent potential impacts to these species, the 
applicants have indicated that the majority of tree removal will be between October 16th and 
April 14th of any given year.  
 
Correspondence with the Maine Natural Areas Program indicates that no rare and exemplary 
botanical features have been identified in the vicinity of the project site. 

 
Per Condition #8, only the topsoil directly affected by buildings, access, and parking areas 
may be removed from the site. Therefore, the project as designed and conditioned meets the 
requirements of this section. 

 
2. Sec. 102.6(B): Relationship to Environment and Neighboring Buildings 

The project is within all bulk and spacing requirements established in the Zoning District, as 
noted in the project data table above. The project site is abutted by the Ledgewood 
Apartment Complex and the Wastewater Treatment facility to the south; by land owned by 
the Coastal Rivers Conservation Trust to the east; and by single-family residences on all 
other sides. 
 
The project site currently consists of understory vegetation. While the proposed building is 
proposed at the top of the slope and so will likely be visible to abutters, the applicants have 
designed the building to be one-story, which reduces views of the buildings from public 
ways. Additionally, landscaping is proposed intended to help further shield the project from 
direct abutters. The landscaping plan is discussed in detail in item #24 below. 

 
Pursuant to this section (which requires a minimum buffer strip of 30 feet for parcels greater 
than three acres), an approximately 90-foot buffer area has been retained between the front 
property line and the parking lot. From the rear property line to the proposed paved 
emergency access drive, an approximately 45-foot buffer area is proposed (between the rear 
property line and the closest point). From the westerly property line to the proposed paved 
service access, a buffer of approximately 150 feet is proposed. The applicant has requested a 
waiver of Sec. 102.6(B)(2)(b) with respect to the eastern property line only, noting that 
“Although the intent is to divide the property, the uses proposed will be compatible and will 
share access using the proposed, paved access drive along the new property line. Providing a 
30ft buffer between the shared access drive and the new property line (by adjusting the line) 
would result in a very narrow strip of property between the Nursing Home parcel and the 
adjacent land to the east. Since this area is within a wetland drainageway that extends to 
either side of the property, it is unlikely that any future development would be practical.” As 
designed and with the waiver requested, staff has found that the project meets the 
requirements of Sec. 102.4(B)(2) and (B)(3). 

  



 

Page 6 of 18 
 

 
3. Sec. 102.6(C): Air Quality 

The proposed project will not result in undue air pollution or odors associated with the use 
being proposed. The emission of dust, ash, fumes, vapors, smoke, or other particulate matter 
of gases is not anticipated. The applicants have submitted an erosion and sedimentation 
control program in accordance with MDEP Best Management Practices, to be used by the 
contractor during construction, which notes that dust control measures will be applied on a 
daily basis during summer construction where dust is most likely (except on days where 
precipitation will be sufficient to control dust). The erosion and sedimentation control 
program is further described in item #10 below. As proposed, staff has found that this 
standard has been met. 
 

4. Sec. 102.6(D): Lighting and Glare 
Limited exterior lighting is proposed with this project within the parking area and along key 
access points along the building. The applicants have indicated that this lighting is proposed 
for safety in these areas. A lighting plan has been submitted which confirms that footcandles 
on abutting properties do not exceed 0.1, in accordance with this section. All exterior lights 
proposed are within the color range of 3000 to 2500 Kelvins or less, as shown on the 
lighting spec sheets submitted. 
 
In accordance with Sec. 102.6(D)(4)(e), which states that the maximum height of the 
luminaire of freestanding or building-attached lights on properties or in parking areas shall 
not exceed 16 feet. All fixture lighting meets this standard. 
 
Per Condition #9, all exterior lighting fixtures shall be full cut-off (shielded) fixtures (the 
applicants have noted this within their application materials; this condition is simply to 
reaffirm the requirement). 
 
No rotating or flashing lights are proposed with this application. 

 
During nighttime hours, exterior lighting shall be turned off or down to the minimum level 
needed for security, in accordance with this section. Condition #9 reaffirms this 
requirement. 
 
The project as designed and conditioned meets the standards of this section. 
 

5. Sec. 102.6(E): Noise 
All noise during construction and once in operation will be required to adhere to the 
provisions of this section, including staying below the sound level limitations as described. 
For a project abutting a residential use, the sound level limits are 45 dBA between 7 p.m. and 
7 a.m., and 55 dBA between 7 a.m. and 7 p.m (though construction noise is allowed between 
6:30 a.m. and 8 p.m.). Condition #10 reaffirms this requirement. Thus, as conditioned, staff 
believes this standard to have been met. 

  



 

Page 7 of 18 
 

 
6. Sec. 102.6(F), (G), (H), and (I): Traffic, Circulation, and Access 

Trips 

A traffic assessment was conducted by Barton & Loguidice on July 18, 2022 on behalf of the 
applicant. To summarize the findings of the traffic report:  

• The proposed development will generate 20 AM peak hour trips on weekdays, and 34 
PM peak hour trips on weekdays, according to trip generation calculations provided by 
the Institute of Traffic Engineers. Total trips generated during an entire weekday will 
be 312 (156 entering and 156 exiting). 

• As trip generation is forecast to be less than 99 trip ends during peak hours, which is 
the threshold for requiring a MaineDOT Traffic Movement Permit (TMP), a TMP 
from MaineDOT is not required. 

• There is one High Crash Location (as determined by MaineDOT) in the immediate 
vicinity of the site. MaineDOT considers any roadway intersection or segment a high 
crash location if there are 8 or more accidents at the location within a three-year 
period, and if the Critical Rate Factor for the location is greater than 1.00. The School 
Street and Main Street intersection represents a High Crash Location. MaineDOT has 
advised staff and the applicants that a short-term fix for this intersection is scheduled 
for implementation in 2023, and that further long-range intersection improvements are 
currently being studied. The applicants have also provided information regarding 
the School Street and Bristol Road intersection. The intersection of School 
Street and Bristol Road has a reported total of 7 crashes between 2019 and 2022 
with a Critical Rate Factor of 2.47 (and thus is not a High Crash Location based 
on MDOT’s established criteria). 

• The proposed site accesses onto Piper Mill Road meet MaineDOT sight distance 
requirements for roadways with a speed limit of 25 mph. A sight distance of at least 
200 feet is required. Looking left from the main entrance, the measured sight distance 
was found to be 500 feet. Looking right from the main entrance, the measured sight 
distance was found to be 285 feet. Looking left from the proposed service entrance, 
the measured sight distance was found to be 270 feet. Looking right from the 
proposed service entrance, the measured sight distance was found to be approximately 
210 feet. The traffic report does note that existing vegetation found on both sides of 
Piper Mill Road to the west of the service entrance severely restricts sight distances. 
The applicants have submitted a roadway clearing plan intended to allow the 
development to meet the standards of this section. Condition #12 notes that the 
clearing must be completed at the applicant’s expense prior to the issuance of a 
Certificate of Occupancy. 

  



 

Page 8 of 18 
 

• The existing sight distance from Piper Mill Road onto School Street meets 
MaineDOT sight distance requirements for roadways with a speed limit of 
35mph, which requires a minimum unobstructed sight distance measurement 
of 305 feet. A sight distance in excess of 350 feet was determined for each 
direction of travel on School Street. 

• The applicant’s traffic engineer recommends installation of a 25mph speed limit sign 
on Piper Mill Road near the School Street intersection, as well as the installation of 
standard curve warning signs on both approaches to the S-curve intersection of Piper 
Mill Road in order to alert drivers. Condition #13 requires this signage to be installed 
by the applicant prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for the project. 

In the view of staff, these findings and associated conditions demonstrate compliance with 
the requirements of Section 102.6(G). 

Access 

Access to the site is planned with construction of two entrances: one main entrance intended 
for use by the general public, and one intended to act as a service entrance. The proposed 
main entrance aligns directly opposite the existing Ledgewood Apartments entrance, and the 
service is proposed to be located about 130-feet to the west. 

The proposal includes a variety of sidewalks and crosswalk connections from the parking 
area to the entrance of the building. Sidewalks are proposed to be concrete with granite 
curbing, and will be raised above the driving areas. Additionally, three separate courtyard 
areas are proposed for the enjoyment of residents which include sidewalk areas. 

Given the level traffic generation and the capacity and design of the roadways connected to 
the site, the project will not cause unreasonable public road congestion or unsafe conditions 
on private or public ways, consistent with the requirements of Section 102.6(F) and (G). 

Parking 

Zoning Ordinance Section 102.6(H)(7)(i) requires that nursing homes provide one parking 
spaces per every three rooms, therefore the project requires at least 34 spaces. The project 
provides 103 spaces, including 9 spaces for people with disabilities. The applicants have 
provided data from their other Maine properties substantiating the need for the 103 parking 
spaces, especially during holidays at peak visiting periods. As designed the parking supplied 
meets the requirements of Section 102.6(H). 

7. Sec. 102.6(J): Existing Public Utilities and Services 
The proposed sewer demand is approximately 8,670 gallons per day. The project is 
proposing to tie into public sewer service and pump their sewage directly to the treatment 
plant via new force mains. A letter from the Great Salt Bay Sanitary District, dated May 17, 
2022, has been provided indicating that adequate collection and treatment capacity is 
available. Therefore, the project meets the requirements for adequate sewage waste disposal. 
Public water access is detailed in item 11 below. 
 



 

Page 9 of 18 
 

The applicants have indicated that the clearing of trees associated with this development, 
which had been previously logged for large timber, is expected to generate approximately 
248 cubic yards of stumps. Per the application materials: “the clearing may include high-
quality trees, suitable for saw logs. These will be cut and exported to an appropriate sawmill 
from the site, separately from the remaining materials. The remaining wood biomass will be 
cut or chipped on site. The biomass will either be retained on site for erosion control 
materials or processed and sent to a biomass facility. Since pine stumps are larger and bulky, 
these stumps will be excavated and/or chipped onsite for use as erosion control mix or 
landscaping mulch.” Other solid waste generated during construction will be hauled by 
private haulers. There are no known hazardous or special wastes at the site. 
 
Post-occupancy, the applicants plan to dispose of their trash at the Nobleboro-Jefferson 
Transfer Facility. There are no known capacity constraints regarding solid waste, therefore, 
in the opinion of staff, the project is consistent with this section. 
 
The proposed development will be equipped with a sprinkler system to provide fire 
suppression in the event of an emergency within the facility. Hydrants will also be provided 
on-site for additional fire suppression. A turning template for the Fire Department’s largest 
apparatus has been submitted which confirms that the truck will be able to adequately 
navigate the site. Additionally, the Fire Chief has reviewed the application materials to ensure 
that emergency access will be appropriate. The Department has indicated that they would 
like to see an additional fire hydrant towards the road near where the generator is located 
which would allow ideal access without concern for vehicles striking out hoses. Additionally, 
the Department has requested a sprinkler hookup as well as a knox box installed on the 
building. Condition #18 notes that the final locations and number of hydrants must be 
determined by the Fire Department prior to the applicant submitting any building permits 
for the project. Additionally, Condition #19 notes that the exact location and details of a 
knox box will be provided to and approved by the Fire Department prior to the Issuance of 
a Certificate of Occupancy. 
 

8. Sec. 102.6(K): Water Quality 
The proposed project will not adversely affect the quality or quantity of groundwater, 
consistent with Sec. 102.6(K) and Sec. 102.6(L), governing the Stormwater Management 
Plan. A detailed discussion of wetland impacts is provided in item 12 below. 
 

9. Sec. 102.6(L): Stormwater Management 
The site slopes gently from a central ridge running north-south on the property. As 
elevations drop to the west, slopes become increasingly steep (reaching over 15%). Slopes to 
the east remain generally in the 5-6% range, similar to the center of the site. The site is 
located with an area of minimal flooding according to the FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Map 
for the area. 

The existing stormwater flows from the aforementioned central ridge towards the west to an 
unnamed stream that forms the western property boundary, and towards the east to three 
separate drainageways, all of which drain to a stream on the adjacent parcel that was donated 
to Coastal Rivers Conservation Trust. 



 

Page 10 of 18 
 

Sec. 102.6(L) notes that the post-development runoff cannot exceed the pre-development 
runoff during extreme storm events. The table below, which was included in the applicant’s 
stormwater report, summarizes the peak runoff values for pre-development and post-
development conditions during each of the analyzed storm events (demonstrating that this 
standard has been met). 

 
The proposed development includes a variety of small, decentralized stormwater Best 
Management Practices (BMPs) designed to capture and treat runoff from the project. The 
BMPs include drip edge filters surrounding the perimeter of the new building, seven 
bioretention cells dispersed across the property, three underdrain soil filters, and a section of 
pervious pavement on each side of the western fire lane. These BMPs have been sized and 
designed in accordance with current State of Maine Chapter 500 Stormwater Law and come 
directly from the recommended Low Impact Development (LID) practices as described in 
the LID Guidance Manual for Maine Communities. 

Snow storage areas are shown on the revised Site Plan and have been sited to allow for 
adequate buffers between freshwater areas (such as the wetlands on the northeasterly 
portion of the site and the adjacent stream to the west). Stormwater retention cells are placed 
strategically between the proposed snow storage areas and the wetlands in order to allow for 
areas for snow runoff/melt to be treated.  

  



 

Page 11 of 18 
 

The applicant has applied for a Site Location of Development Act permit through the Maine 
Department of Environmental Protection (DEP). The project has been designed to provide 
treatment for 98% of the proposed impervious area and 99% of the developed area, in 
accordance with the Chapter 500 Regulations for Basic, General and Flooding Standards. 
Condition #14 requires that documentation of the DEP permit being granted is submitted 
to the Town Planner prior to the issuance of any building permits for the proposed project. 

The applicant is proposing to retain ownership of the stormwater management facility and 
has provided a Stormwater Maintenance Plan outlining their responsibilities post-occupancy 
to ensure that the stormwater facilities continue to perform as designed. Maine DEP 
requires permittees to perform a “check-up” on their stormwater systems and recertify that 
the systems are operating as approved every five years from the issuance date of their permit. 

10. Sec. 102.6(M): Erosion & Sediment Control 
The proposed development is for a 102-bed nursing home facility (an approximately 75,000 
s.f. building) and associated site improvements, and the project will be completed over an 
approximately 18-month period from Spring 2023 to the Fall of 2024. All stormwater, 
drainage, and water effluent are managed appropriately for the proposed use as outlined in 
the analysis above. 

The applicant has submitted a NRCS Web Soil Survey, which shows the predominant soil 
types on site as Buxton/Lamoine and Scantic silt loams (with small areas of Tunbridge/Lyman 
complex rocky soils at the edges of the property). Additional geotechnical information was 
gathered by SW Cole Engineering, on behalf of the applicants, which generally confirm the 
mapping illustrated on the web survey. Onsite soils are moderately susceptible to erosion. 
Thus, pursuant to Section 102.6(M), an erosion and sedimentation control program proposal 
has been submitted. Construction activities are proposed to be stabilized through the 
installation of silt fencing or erosion control berms down slope of any disturbed areas (with 
additional measures at the foot of steep slopes or adjacent to the wetland areas) and erosion 
control blankets or riprap stabilization atop steep slopes. Maintenance of the erosion and 
sedimentation control areas will be the responsibility of the site contractor during 
construction, in accordance with the Maine Erosion and Sediment Control Best Management Practices 
(BMPs) Manual for Designers and Engineers (2016). Construction entrances will be stabilized with 
crushed stone to minimize tracking. Temporary stockpiles will be stabilized and protected. 
Post-construction, areas not subject to other restoration (e.g. paving or riprap) will be loamed 
and seeded. 

The erosion and sedimentation control plan, as submitted, is satisfactory to meet the 
requirements of Section 102.6(M). 
 

11. Sec. 102.6(N): Water Supply 
The proposed project is for a 102-bed nursing facility. The applicants anticipate an 85 gallon 
per room per day water usage, with a total estimated usage amount of 8,670 gallons per day. 
The applicants have provided documentation from the Great Salt Bay Sanitary District 
indicating that they have the ability to provide water to the proposed project. 
 



 

Page 12 of 18 
 

As the project will be served by both public water and sewer, a hydrogeologic study is not 
required. Materials at the site with the potential to cause groundwater contamination may 
include household cleaning chemicals or fuel tanks. As these will be stored inside buildings 
within normal household quantities, in the opinion of staff, this standard has been met. 
 

12. Sec. 102.6(O): Natural Beauty 
Trees near the front property line are proposed to be impacted by the construction of the 
proposed building as well as the easterly emergency access drive. However, the building has 
been sited in an area where historical tree clearing has occurred and which is now 
predominantly an open field. In an effort to replace trees slated for removal, a total of 54 
evergreen trees that are 6’ to 7’ tall are proposed in key areas around the site, including at the 
edge of the emergency access road on the western side of the property, surrounding the 
parking areas, and to highlight the entrance of the building and surrounding courtyards. A 
total of 100 deciduous trees of various heights are also proposed in similar key areas. A 
variety of shrubs and other small landscaping are also proposed. Additionally, condition #15 
requires that the applicant install fencing around the dripline edge of all existing trees 
designated to be protected, as shown on the plan. 
 
According to wetland delineation conducted in the winter of 2021, no potential vernal pool 
habitat was identified within the project site. 
 
Approximately 14,505 s.f. of freshwater wetlands are proposed to be impacted by the 
proposed development. The proposed wetland impacts must be reviewed under a Tier 1 
permit from the Maine Department of Environmental Protection under the Natural 
Resource Protection Act. The applicants have indicated that this permit is currently under 
review by the DEP.  Additionally, authorization from the Army Corps of Engineers is 
required for the proposed wetland impact. Condition #14 requires the applicants to submit 
documentation to the Town that the DEP permit, as well as authorization from the Army 
Corps of Engineers, have been obtained prior to the release of a building permit.  
 

13. Sec. 102.6(P): Historic and Archeological Resources 
The applicant has submitted documentation from the Maine Historic Preservation 
Commission indicating that no documented archeological or historic resources will be 
impacted by the proposed development. Therefore, this standard has been met. 
 

14. Sec. 102.6(Q): Filling and Excavation 
All excavation will be incidental to the proposed development and are not part of an 
excavation or filling operation. Thus, this standard is not applicable to this project. 
 

15. Sec. 102.6(R): Sewage Disposal 
As discussed in item 7 above, the applicant is proposing to tie into the existing public sewer 
system and has received confirmation from the Great Salt Bay Sanitary District that there is 
adequate capacity to serve the sewage generated from the proposed development. Therefore, 
this standard has been met. 
 

16. Sec. 102.6(S): Phosphorus Control 
The subject property is not located within the watershed of a great pond; therefore, this 
standard is not applicable. 



 

Page 13 of 18 
 

 
17. Sec. 102.6(T): Buffer Areas 

As described further in item #1 above, buffers have been provided sufficient to meet the 
standards of this section. When natural features in the buffer areas do not exist sufficient to 
screen the proposed development from adjacent properties and from roadways within the 
proposed project, additional landscaping has been provided in accordance with this section. 
The buffer area plantings are diverse, with multiple varieties of trees, evergreen trees, and 
shrubs being used. Condition #16 reaffirms the requirement of this section that, if 
landscaping dies, is removed, or otherwise requires replacement, is not replaced within thirty 
days (or as seasonally required by the species), it shall be considered a violation of any 
approval granted by this Board and shall be subject to enforcement provisions. 
 
Fencing is proposed around the trash collection and in the service area. All ground-mounted 
mechanical units will be similarly screened.  

 
18. Sec. 102.6(U): Signs 

All signage will be designed to meet the Town of Damariscotta Sign Ordinance and will be 
reviewed by the Code Enforcement Officer in accordance with the provisions of that 
ordinance. 

 
19. Sec. 106.6(V): Building Appearance 

As the proposed building is larger than 7,500 s.f. in floor area, the Large-Scale Development 
Standards for Building Appearance (described in detail under item #20 below) shall apply. 

 
Large-Scale Development Standards 

20. Sec. 102.7(A): Building Appearance 
Elevations drawings of the building’s exterior have been submitted which include the use of 
pitched roofs, dormers, windows, and vinyl clapboard siding, among other architectural 
details intended to enhance the outward appearance of the building and to present a 
residential aesthetic. No façade extends more than 49 feet without an architectural feature, 
such as an awning or actual protrusion of at least 6 feet. 
 
Additionally, a repeating pattern on each façade is proposed in accordance with this section. 
Colors proposed are of a neutral tone. The main entrance to the facility is clearly defined 
through the use of architectural features as well as landscaping and overall site design. 
 

21. Sec. 102.7(B): Outdoor Sales 
As the development is not for a retail establishment, these standards do not apply. 
 

22. Sec. 102.7(C): Parking 
As described in item #6 above, the parking requirements of Sec. 102.6(H) have been met. 
 
Additionally, no off-street parking has been sited between Piper Mill Road and the closest 
façade of the building. Therefore, staff has found the standards of this section to have been 
met. 

  



 

Page 14 of 18 
 

 
23. Sec. 102.7(D): Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities 

The applicant has requested a waiver to some of the requirements of this section, as 
described in the waivers section below. Instead of providing sidewalks that are 8-feet in 
width, the applicant is proposing to provide 6-foot-wide sidewalks within the parking area, 
and sidewalks that are 5-feet wide within the courtyard areas.  
 
Condition #17 requires that the applicant install sidewalks along the entirety of the frontage 
of the subject property in accordance with this section. 
 

24. Sec. 102.7(E): Landscaping 
At least 75% of all of the vegetation proposed is native species, sufficient to meet the 
standard of this section. Landscaping is described in greater detail in item #12 above. 
 
More than 30% of the buildings total foundation is planted with landscaping sufficient to 
meet the standard of this section. Additionally, landscaping is proposed in the entrance area 
of the building, in the parking area, as well as along the façade facing Piper Mill Road. Thus, 
staff has found that the standards of this section have been met.  
 

25. Sec. 102.7(F): Screening 
The site plan as proposed incorporates screening and fencing around the trash collection 
area and into the service area. All ground-mounted mechanical units will be similarly 
screened. Propane tanks for the facility will be installed underground to reduce the visual 
impact of essential utility infrastructure.  

 
26. Sec. 102.7(G): Building Reuse 

Submittals related to this standard are not necessary. However, applicants are aware of the 
Selectboard’s rights related to vacant buildings. 
 

27. Sec. 102.7(H): Additional Standards for Large-Scale Developments with a Floor Area 
>20,000 s.f. 

• Sec. 102.7(H)(1): This standard is not applicable to this project, as it references 
construction of retail buildings. The proposed project is for a nursing care 
facility. 

• Sec. 102.7(H)(2): This standard is not applicable to this project, as it references 
construction of a retail building. 

• Sec. 102.7(H)(3): A waiver to this standard has been requested by the 
applicants. See staff’s analysis in the waiver section below. 
 

Conditional Use Standards 
28. Sec. 101.9(C)(2)(a): Conditional Uses 

The proposed use will meet the requirements of the Town’s Land Use Ordinance, as 
described in the project data table above, as well as the Site Plan Review Ordinance, as 
described in the analyses above. 

  



 

Page 15 of 18 
 

The potential effect of the use on the environment (from air, water or soil pollution), noise, 
traffic, congestion, soil erosion, the burden on the public sewer and water systems as well as 
other municipal services have been taken into consideration and have been analyzed in the 
requirements above. As noted, the proposed use will not have an adverse effect on the 
health, safety, or general welfare of the public.     

WAIVERS 

The applicant requests the following waivers for the project:  

1. Waiver pursuant to Site Plan Review Ordinance Section 102.7(D) to provide sidewalks 
within the parking areas that are 6’ in width, rather than the 8’ width required as part of this 
section and to not raise the sidewalks 6 inches above the travel way.  

Analysis: Staff is supportive of this waiver, since the internal sidewalks will primarily 
be used by visitors, employees, and vendors related only to the proposed 
development and not by the general public. Additionally, the applicants noted that 
the use of the property requires barrier-free access from the drop-off and adjacent 
spaces reserved for those with disabilities, and that raising the sidewalks 6 inches 
above the travel way would hinder barrier-free access. 

2. Waiver pursuant to Site Plan Review Ordinance Section 102.7(H)(3), which requires the 
applicants to submit an economic and fiscal impact analysis for the proposed large-scale 
development.  

Analysis: Staff is supportive of this waiver. In the view of staff, there was value in 
the community understanding (at minimum) the following potential impacts listed in 
this section: (H)(3)(b)(1): Types of jobs created; (H)(3)(b)(2): number of full-time and 
part-time jobs created; (H)(3)(b)(3): Market and financial feasibility of the project; 
(H)(3)(b)(7): Projected costs and benefits to the Town resulting from the project. 
The applicants provided this information orally during the November 7, 2022 
meeting and have provided a supplemental memo to this effect that is included in 
this packet. Therefore, a waiver of the remaining standards under (H)(3) would be 
appropriate. 

3. Waiver pursuant to Site Plan Review Ordinance Section 102.6(B)(2)(b) with respect to 
the eastern property line only. This section requires the applicant to provide a 30-foot 
minimum buffer strip between the proposed, new property line and the paved access drive. 

Analysis: Staff is supportive of this waiver, since the applicant also owns the property 
to the east of the subject parcel and has indicated that they are retaining it for future 
development of a compatible land use. The intent of this standard is to provide a 
buffer between development and neighboring land uses not owned by the applicant. 

  



 

Page 16 of 18 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the review of the project and all information in the record, staff recommends the 
following: 

Approve the Site Plan application of Clippership Landing Development, LLC, dated 
through December 23, 2022; drawings stamped and dated through October 17, 2022, for 
the Clippership Landing Nursing Home project at Map 1, Lot 50 on Piper Mill Road, and 
grant the requested waivers, subject to the following conditions: 

Suggested Conditions of Approval 

 Condition Staff 
Assigned 

Must be 
Completed By:   

1.  This approval is dependent upon and limited to the proposals 
and plans contained in the application and supporting 
documents submitted and affirmed to by the applicant.  Any 
variation from the plans, proposals and supporting documents 
are subject to the review and approval of the Planning Board 
prior to implementation. 

Town Planner Ongoing 

2.  All adopted conditions of approval and any waivers granted shall 
appear on the face of the plans submitted for building permits, 
and the face of the subdivision plan, if applicable. 

Code Officer Prior to Issuing 
Building Permit 

3.  Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall pay 
all outstanding review escrow account fees, post the necessary 
performance guarantee(s) in such amount(s) as established by the 
Town and hold a pre-construction meeting with the Town if 
necessary. 

Town Planner Prior to Issuing 
Building Permit  

4.  This Planning Board approval is valid for 12 months from the 
date of approval and shall expire if work has not substantially 
commenced within that time period.  

Code Officer Ongoing 

5.  Prior to submitting a building permit, the applicant shall submit 
three hard-copy plans at 24” x 36” size to the Town Planner with 
all conditions and waivers listed on the plans. 

Town Planner Prior to 
Submitting a 
Building Permit 

6.  The applicant shall secure a Building Permit from the Code 
Enforcement Officer in coordination with the Town Planner, 
Fire Department, and all relevant review authorities, prior to 
commencing any construction activities. 

Code Officer Prior to Issuing 
Building Permit 

7.  A waiver has been granted pursuant to Site Plan Review 
Ordinance Section 102.7(D), which allows the applicant to 
provide sidewalks within the parking areas that are 6’ in width, 
rather than the 8’ width required as part of this section and to 
not raise the sidewalks 6 inches above the travel way.  

Town Planner Ongoing 



 

Page 17 of 18 
 

 Condition Staff 
Assigned 

Must be 
Completed By:   

8.  Only the topsoil directly impacted by proposed buildings, access 
ways, and parking areas may be removed from the site without 
returning to the Planning Board for further review, per Section 
102.6(A). 

Town Planner Ongoing 

9.  All exterior lighting fixtures shall be full cut-off (shielded) 
fixtures in accordance with Section 102.6(D). 

Town Planner Ongoing 

10.  All noise associated with the proposed development shall be 
regulated in accordance with the provisions of Sec. 102.6. 
Applicants and their contractors are well-advised to familiarize 
themselves with that section of the Town’s Ordinances. 

Code Officer Ongoing 

11.  Prior to holding a pre-construction meeting and submitting a 
building permit, wetlands and associated setbacks and stream 
setbacks are to be staked to ensure that all erosion and 
sedimentation controls and site disturbance and construction 
activities avoid the protected wetland.  

Town Planner Prior to 
Submitting a 
Building Permit 

12.  In order to allow the standard of Sec. 102.6(G)(1) to be met, the 
applicants have submitted a roadway clearing plan for existing 
vegetation found on both sides of Piper Mill Road to the west of 
the proposed service entrance. The clearing of vegetation as 
depicted on the submitted plan must be completed at the 
applicant’s expense prior to the issuance of a Certificate of 
Occupancy. 

Town 
Planner/Code 
Officer 

Prior to Issuing 
Certificate of 
Occupancy 

13.  Applicants are required to complete the installation of a 25mph 
speed limit sign on Piper Mill Road near the School Street 
intersection, as well as the installation of standard curve warning 
signs on both approaches to the S-curve intersection of Piper 
Mill Road in order to alert drivers to the street realignment. 

Town 
Planner/Code 
Officer 

Prior to Issuing 
Certificate of 
Occupancy 

14.  Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicants are 
required to submit to the Town Planner confirmation from the 
Maine DEP that their Site Location of Development permit and 
their NRPA permit have been approved. Additionally, 
confirmation that the Army Corps of Engineers have approved 
the wetland impacts is required to be submitted prior to the 
issuance of a building permit. 

Town Planner Prior to Issuing 
Building Permit  

15.  Prior to submitting a building permit, the applicant shall establish 
fencing at the drip line of all trees that are designated for 
preservation in the approved Site Plan. No construction staging 
or other construction-related activity is permitted within the drip 
line fence barrier. 

Town Planner Prior to 
Submitting a 
Building Permit 



Page 18 of 18 

Condition Staff 
Assigned 

Must be 
Completed By:  

16. If landscaping that dies, is removed, or otherwise requires 
replacement, is not replaced within thirty days (or as seasonally 
required by the species), it shall be considered a violation of any 
approval granted by this Board and shall be subject to 
enforcement provisions. 

Code Officer Ongoing 

17. In accordance with Sec. 102.7(D), the applicant shall install 
sidewalks along the frontage of the entirety of the subject 
property (all of the property identified as Tax Map 1, Lot 50 at 
the time of this approval) at their own expense, or will come to a 
mutual agreement with the Town to fund the installation of 
sidewalks along this area. Sidewalks will be installed at no cost to 
the Town. Sidewalk installation shall be completed within one 
year of the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. 

Town Planner Within 1 year of 
the Occupancy 

18. The final locations and number of hydrants must be approved by 
the Fire Department prior to the applicant submitting any 
building permits for the project. 

Fire 
Dept./Code 
Officer 

Prior to 
Submitting a 
Building Permit 

19. The exact location and details of a knox box will be provided to 
and approved by the Fire Department prior to the Issuance of a 
Certificate of Occupancy. 

Fire 
Dept./Code 
Officer 

Prior to Issuing 
Certificate of 
Occupancy 

20. A waiver has been granted pursuant to Site Plan Review 
Ordinance Section 102.6(B)(2)(b) with respect to the eastern 
property line only. This section requires the applicant to provide 
a 30-foot minimum buffer strip between the proposed, new 
property line and the paved access drive (see analysis above). 

Town Planner Ongoing 

21. A waiver has been granted pursuant to Site Plan Review 
Ordinance Section 102.7(H)(3), which requires the applicants to 
submit an economic and fiscal impact analysis for the proposed 
large-scale development. Instead, the applicants provided 
relevant information to the Planning Board during the public 
hearings, negating the need for this requirement. 

Town Planner Ongoing 

22. Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the 
applicants will be required to submit a plan to turn down lighting 
to the minimum extent practical for security purposes at night. 
This will need to be reviewed to the satisfaction of the Code 
Enforcement Officer, Town Planner, and Police Chief. 

Town Planner Prior to Issuing 
Certificate of 
Occupancy 

Isabelle V. Oechslie 
Town Planner 
January 3, 2023



DAMARISCOTTA PLANNING BOARD 
FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW,  

AND NOTICE OF DECISION 

Date: January 3, 2023 

 

Site Plan & Conditional Use Applications – Clippership Landing Nursing Home 

Piper Mill Road – Clippership Landing Development, LLC 

PID #2201 

The Town of Damariscotta Planning Board issues the following Findings of Fact and Conclusions 
of Law at its duly-noticed public hearing of November 7, 2022 (public hearing continued to 
December 5, 2022, and decision rendered at the January 3, 2023 Meeting): 

A. The Planning Board considered the Project, the staff report, and received and considered all 
written and oral public comments on the Project which were submitted up to and at the time 
of the public hearings for the Project; and 

B. Legal advertisements regarding this public hearing appeared in the Lincoln County News on 
October 27, 2022 and November 3, 2022, and were mailed to 22 property owners within 250’ 
of the subject property and were posted at the Town Office on October 24, 2022; and  

C. The project description is as follows:  

Applicant Clippership Landing Development, LLC is requesting Site Plan review in order to 
construct a 102 bed nursing care facility and associated site improvements (including parking 
areas and two curb cuts, stormwater management facilities, and courtyard areas and path 
systems for the enjoyment of residents of the facility). The parcel is further identified as 
Assessor’s Tax Map 1, Lot 50 and it is located within the Rural Zoning District and the Town’s 
designed Village Expansion Growth Area, per the 2014 Comprehensive Plan; and  

D. The Project is subject to the following policies and standards of review:  

a. Chapter 102, Sec. 102.6: Performance Standards [Site Plan Review]; 
b. Chapter 102, Sec. 102.7: Large-Scale Development Standards [Site Plan Review];  
c. Sec. 101.9: Appeals and Conditional Uses. 

  



 

Page 2 

 

E. The core Project Data includes:  

Zoning: Rural 
Land Area: 19.98 acres (proposed to be subdivided further) 
Existing Land Use: Vacant 
Proposed Land Use: Nursing care facility 
 Allowed: Proposed: 
Max. Building Height: 35 feet 29.7’ at highest ridgeline 
Min. Front Yard Building 
Setback: 

20 feet ~120’ at closest point 

Min. Side Yard Building 
Setback: 

15 feet ~40’ at closest point 

Min. Rear Yard Building 
Setback: 

15 feet ~90’ at closest point 

Min. Water Setback: 100 feet from abutting 
stream 

~120’ at closest point (on 
proposed maintenance garage) 

Min. Off-Street Parking*: 34 spaces (1 space for 
every 3 rooms) 

103 spaces, including 9 spaces 
for people with disabilities 

 
*Pursuant to 102.6(H)(7)(i). 
 

F. Based on its review of the entire record herein, the Planning Board has determined that the 
Project meets the applicable policies and standards of review, and the Planning Board makes 
the following findings: 

Site Plan Standards 

1. Sec. 102.6(A): Preserve and Enhance 
the Landscape 
The bufferyard is the area at the 
perimeter of the property encompassing 
the Town’s building setback 
requirements and the existing or planted 
vegetation, fencing, walls or berms 
located within the area. Per the 
standards outlined in this section, the 
only development permitted within the 
bufferyard is required landscaping and 
fencing, landscape lighting, essential 
utilities that cannot be located outside of 
the buffer because of site constraints, 
passive stormwater filtration areas, and 
points of ingress and egress as 
authorized by the Planning Board. Within 
the bufferyard, the applicants are 
proposing to locate the fire access drive. 
Additionally, the corner of a stormwater 
filtration area is located within the buffer Figure 1 



 

Page 3 

 

yard. See Figure 1. As noted, these are exempt and thus, in staff’s view, this standard 
has been met.  
 
The applicants have indicated that the building has been sited in such a way as to 
preserve the landscape and existing topography of the site to the maximum extent 
practical. The building is centrally located to allow for natural vegetation to be retained in 
the buffer yards of the property. Additionally, a landscape plan has been submitted 
which shows approximately 150 new tree plantings, intended to shield the new 
development from abutting properties and from public streets. Photo renderings of the 
proposed building and site have been provided by the applicants in a packet of 
supplemental materials dated November 23, 2022. The The landscaping plan is further 
described in item #24 below. 

 
A letter from the Maine Department of Inland Fisheries & Wildlife submitted with the 
application indicates that three bat species which are protected under Maine’s 
Endangered Species Act (including the little brown bat, northern long-eared bat, and 
eastern small-footed bat) may be present on the site during their migration and/or during 
the breeding season. However, the IF&W noted that they do not anticipate significant 
impacts to any of the bat species as part of this project. Still, to prevent potential impacts 
to these species, the applicants have indicated that the majority of tree removal will be 
between October 16th and April 14th of any given year.  
 
Correspondence with the Maine Natural Areas Program indicates that no rare and 
exemplary botanical features have been identified in the vicinity of the project site. 

 
Per Condition #8, only the topsoil directly affected by buildings, access, and parking 
areas may be removed from the site. Therefore, the project as designed and conditioned 
meets the requirements of this section. 

 
2. Sec. 102.6(B): Relationship to Environment and Neighboring Buildings 

The project is within all bulk and spacing requirements established in the Zoning District, 
as noted in the project data table above. The project site is abutted by the Ledgewood 
Apartment Complex and the Wastewater Treatment facility to the south; by land owned 
by the Coastal Rivers Conservation Trust to the east; and by single-family residences on 
all other sides. 
 
The project site currently consists of understory vegetation. While the proposed building 
is proposed at the top of the slope and so will likely be visible to abutters, the applicants 
have designed the building to be one-story, which reduces views of the buildings from 
public ways. Additionally, landscaping is proposed intended to help further shield the 
project from direct abutters. The landscaping plan is discussed in detail in item #24 
below. 

 
Pursuant to this section (which requires a minimum buffer strip of 30 feet for parcels 
greater than three acres), an approximately 90-foot buffer area has been retained 
between the front property line and the parking lot. From the rear property line to the 
proposed paved emergency access drive, an approximately 45-foot buffer area is 
proposed (between the rear property line and the closest point). From the westerly 
property line to the proposed paved service access, a buffer of approximately 150 feet is 
proposed. The applicant has requested a waiver of Sec. 102.6(B)(2)(b) with respect to 



 

Page 4 

 

the eastern property line only, noting that “Although the intent is to divide the property, 
the uses proposed will be compatible and will share access using the proposed, paved 
access drive along the new property line. Providing a 30ft buffer between the shared 
access drive and the new property line (by adjusting the line) would result in a very 
narrow strip of property between the Nursing Home parcel and the adjacent land to the 
east. Since this area is within a wetland drainageway that extends to either side of the 
property, it is unlikely that any future development would be practical.” As designed and 
with the waiver requested, staff has found that the project meets the requirements of 
Sec. 102.4(B)(2) and (B)(3). 

 
3. Sec. 102.6(C): Air Quality 

The proposed project will not result in undue air pollution or odors associated with the 
use being proposed. The emission of dust, ash, fumes, vapors, smoke, or other 
particulate matter of gases is not anticipated. The applicants have submitted an erosion 
and sedimentation control program in accordance with MDEP Best Management 
Practices, to be used by the contractor during construction, which notes that dust control 
measures will be applied on a daily basis during summer construction where dust is 
most likely (except on days where precipitation will be sufficient to control dust). The 
erosion and sedimentation control program is further described in item #10 below. As 
proposed, staff has found that this standard has been met. 
 

4. Sec. 102.6(D): Lighting and Glare 
Limited exterior lighting is proposed with this project within the parking area and along 
key access points along the building. The applicants have indicated that this lighting is 
proposed for safety in these areas. A lighting plan has been submitted which confirms 
that footcandles on abutting properties do not exceed 0.1, in accordance with this 
section. All exterior lights proposed are within the color range of 3000 to 2500 Kelvins or 
less, as shown on the lighting spec sheets submitted. 
 
In accordance with Sec. 102.6(D)(4)(e), which states that the maximum height of the 
luminaire of freestanding or building-attached lights on properties or in parking areas 
shall not exceed 16 feet. All fixture lighting meets this standard. 
 
Per Condition #9, all exterior lighting fixtures shall be full cut-off (shielded) fixtures (the 
applicants have noted this within their application materials; this condition is simply to 
reaffirm the requirement). 
 
No rotating or flashing lights are proposed with this application. 

 
During nighttime hours, exterior lighting shall be turned off or down to the minimum level 
needed for security, in accordance with this section. Condition #9 reaffirms this 
requirement. 
 
The project as designed and conditioned meets the standards of this section. 

  



 

Page 5 

 

 
5. Sec. 102.6(E): Noise 

All noise during construction and once in operation will be required to adhere to the 
provisions of this section, including staying below the sound level limitations as 
described. For a project abutting a residential use, the sound level limits are 45 dBA 
between 7 p.m. and 7 a.m., and 55 dBA between 7 a.m. and 7 p.m (though construction 
noise is allowed between 6:30 a.m. and 8 p.m.). Condition #10 reaffirms this 
requirement. Thus, as conditioned, staff believes this standard to have been met. 
 

6. Sec. 102.6(F), (G), (H), and (I): Traffic, Circulation, and Access 
Trips 

A traffic assessment was conducted by Barton & Loguidice on July 18, 2022 on behalf of 
the applicant. To summarize the findings of the traffic report:  

• The proposed development will generate 20 AM peak hour trips on weekdays, and 
34 PM peak hour trips on weekdays, according to trip generation calculations 
provided by the Institute of Traffic Engineers. Total trips generated during an entire 
weekday will be 312 (156 entering and 156 exiting). 

• As trip generation is forecast to be less than 99 trip ends during peak hours, which 
is the threshold for requiring a MaineDOT Traffic Movement Permit (TMP), a TMP 
from MaineDOT is not required. 

• There is one High Crash Location (as determined by MaineDOT) in the immediate 
vicinity of the site. MaineDOT considers any roadway intersection or segment a 
high crash location if there are 8 or more accidents at the location within a three-
year period, and if the Critical Rate Factor for the location is greater than 1.00. The 
School Street and Main Street intersection represents a High Crash Location. 
MaineDOT has advised staff and the applicants that a short-term fix for this 
intersection is scheduled for implementation in 2023, and that further long-range 
intersection improvements are currently being studied. The applicants have also 
provided information regarding the School Street and Bristol Road intersection. 
The intersection of School Street and Bristol Road has a reported total of 7 crashes 
between 2019 and 2022 with a Critical Rate Factor of 2.47 (and thus is not a High 
Crash Location based on MDOT’s established criteria). 

• The proposed site accesses meet MaineDOT sight distance requirements for 
roadways with a speed limit of 25 mph. A sight distance of at least 200 feet is 
required. Looking left from the main entrance, the measured sight distance was 
found to be 500 feet. Looking right from the main entrance, the measured sight 
distance was found to be 285 feet. Looking left from the proposed service 
entrance, the measured sight distance was found to be 270 feet. Looking right from 
the proposed service entrance, the measured sight distance was found to be 
approximately 210 feet. The traffic report does note that existing vegetation found 
on both sides of Piper Mill Road to the west of the service entrance severely 
restricts sight distances. The applicants have submitted a roadway clearing plan 
intended to allow the development to meet the standards of this section. Condition 



 

Page 6 

 

#12 notes that the clearing must be completed at the applicant’s expense prior to 
the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. 

• The existing sight distance from Piper Mill Road onto School Street meets 
MaineDOT sight distance requirements for roadways with a speed limit of 35mph, 
which requires a minimum unobstructed sight distance measurement of 305 feet. A 
sight distance in excess of 350 feet was determined for each direction of travel on 
School Street. 
 

• The applicant’s traffic engineer recommends installation of a 25mph speed limit 
sign on Piper Mill Road near the School Street intersection, as well as the 
installation of standard curve warning signs on both approaches to the S-curve 
intersection of Piper Mill Road in order to alert drivers. Condition #13 requires this 
signage to be installed by the applicant prior to the issuance of a Certificate of 
Occupancy for the project. 

In the view of staff, these findings and associated conditions demonstrate compliance 
with the requirements of Section 102.6(G). 

Access 

Access to the site is planned with construction of two entrances: one main entrance 
intended for use by the general public, and one intended to act as a service entrance. 
The proposed main entrance aligns directly opposite the existing Ledgewood 
Apartments entrance, and the service is proposed to be located about 130-feet to the 
west. 

The proposal includes a variety of sidewalks and crosswalk connections from the 
parking area to the entrance of the building. Sidewalks are proposed to be concrete with 
granite curbing, and will be raised above the driving areas. Additionally, three separate 
courtyard areas are proposed for the enjoyment of residents which include sidewalk 
areas. 

Given the level traffic generation and the capacity and design of the roadways 
connected to the site, the project will not cause unreasonable public road congestion or 
unsafe conditions on private or public ways, consistent with the requirements of Section 
102.6(F) and (G). 

Parking 

Zoning Ordinance Section 102.6(H)(7)(i) requires that nursing homes provide one 
parking spaces per every three rooms, therefore the project requires at least 34 spaces. 
The project provides 103 spaces, including 9 spaces for people with disabilities. The 
applicants have provided data from their other Maine properties substantiating the need 
for the 103 parking spaces, especially during holidays at peak visiting periods. As 
designed the parking supplied meets the requirements of Section 102.6(H). 

  



 

Page 7 

 

7. Sec. 102.6(J): Existing Public Utilities and Services 
The proposed sewer demand is approximately 8,670 gallons per day. The project is 
proposing to tie into public sewer service and pump their sewage directly to the 
treatment plant via new force mains. A letter from the Great Salt Bay Sanitary District, 
dated May 17, 2022, has been provided indicating that adequate collection and 
treatment capacity is available. Therefore, the project meets the requirements for 
adequate sewage waste disposal. Public water access is detailed in item 11 below. 
 
The applicants have indicated that the clearing of trees associated with this 
development, which had been previously logged for large timber, is expected to 
generate approximately 248 cubic yards of stumps. Per the application materials: “the 
clearing may include high-quality trees, suitable for saw logs. These will be cut and 
exported to an appropriate sawmill from the site, separately from the remaining 
materials. The remaining wood biomass will be cut or chipped on site. The biomass will 
either be retained on site for erosion control materials or processed and sent to a 
biomass facility. Since pine stumps are larger and bulky, these stumps will be excavated 
and/or chipped onsite for use as erosion control mix or landscaping mulch.” Other solid 
waste generated during construction will be hauled by private haulers. There are no 
known hazardous or special wastes at the site. 
 
Post-occupancy, the applicants plan to dispose of their trash at the Nobleboro-Jefferson 
Transfer Facility. There are no known capacity constraints regarding solid waste, 
therefore, in the opinion of staff, the project is consistent with this section. 
 
The proposed development will be equipped with a sprinkler system to provide fire 
suppression in the event of an emergency within the facility. Hydrants will also be 
provided on-site for additional fire suppression. A turning template for the Fire 
Department’s largest apparatus has been submitted which confirms that the truck will be 
able to adequately navigate the site. Additionally, the Fire Chief has reviewed the 
application materials to ensure that emergency access will be appropriate. The 
Department has indicated that they would like to see an additional fire hydrant towards 
the road near where the generator is located which would allow ideal access without 
concern for vehicles striking out hoses. Additionally, the Department has requested a 
sprinkler hookup as well as a knox box installed on the building. Condition #18 notes that 
the final locations and number of hydrants must be determined by the Fire Department 
prior to the applicant submitting any building permits for the project. Additionally, 
Condition #19 notes that the exact location and details of a knox box will be provided to 
and approved by the Fire Department prior to the Issuance of a Certificate of 
Occupancy. 
 

8. Sec. 102.6(K): Water Quality 
The proposed project will not adversely affect the quality or quantity of groundwater, 
consistent with Sec. 102.6(K) and Sec. 102.6(L), governing the Stormwater 
Management Plan. A detailed discussion of wetland impacts is provided in item 12 
below. 

  



 

Page 8 

 

9. Sec. 102.6(L): Stormwater Management 
The site slopes gently from a central ridge running north-south on the property. As 
elevations drop to the west, slopes become increasingly steep (reaching over 15%). 
Slopes to the east remain generally in the 5-6% range, similar to the center of the site. 
The site is located with an area of minimal flooding according to the FEMA Flood 
Insurance Rate Map for the area. 

The existing stormwater flows from the aforementioned central ridge towards the west to 
an unnamed stream that forms the western property boundary, and towards the east to 
three separate drainageways, all of which drain to a stream on the adjacent parcel that 
was donated to Coastal Rivers Conservation Trust. 

Sec. 102.6(L) notes that the post-development runoff cannot exceed the pre-
development runoff during extreme storm events. The table below, which was included 
in the applicant’s stormwater report, summarizes the peak runoff values for pre-
development and post-development conditions during each of the analyzed storm events 
(demonstrating that this standard has been met). 

 
The proposed development includes a variety of small, decentralized stormwater Best 
Management Practices (BMPs) designed to capture and treat runoff from the project. 
The BMPs include drip edge filters surrounding the perimeter of the new building, seven 
bioretention cells dispersed across the property, three underdrain soil filters, and a 
section of pervious pavement on each side of the western fire lane. These BMPs have 



 

Page 9 

 

been sized and designed in accordance with current State of Maine Chapter 500 
Stormwater Law and come directly from the recommended Low Impact Development 
(LID) practices as described in the LID Guidance Manual for Maine Communities. 

Snow storage areas are shown on the revised Site Plan and have been sited to allow for 
adequate buffers between freshwater areas (such as the wetlands on the northeasterly 
portion of the site and the adjacent stream to the west). Stormwater retention cells are 
placed strategically between the proposed snow storage areas and the wetlands in order 
to allow for areas for snow runoff/melt to be treated.  

The applicant has applied for a Site Location of Development Act permit through the 
Maine Department of Environmental Protection (DEP). The project has been designed to 
provide treatment for 98% of the proposed impervious area and 99% of the developed 
area, in accordance with the Chapter 500 Regulations for Basic, General and Flooding 
Standards. Condition #14 requires that documentation of the DEP permit being granted 
is submitted to the Town Planner prior to the issuance of any building permits for the 
proposed project. 

The applicant is proposing to retain ownership of the stormwater management facility 
and has provided a Stormwater Maintenance Plan outlining their responsibilities post-
occupancy to ensure that the stormwater facilities continue to perform as designed. 
Maine DEP requires permittees to perform a “check-up” on their stormwater systems 
and recertify that the systems are operating as approved every five years from the 
issuance date of their permit. 

10. Sec. 102.6(M): Erosion & Sediment Control 
The proposed development is for a 102-bed nursing home facility (an approximately 
75,000 s.f. building) and associated site improvements, and the project will be completed 
over an approximately 18-month period from Spring 2023 to the Fall of 2024. All 
stormwater, drainage, and water effluent are managed appropriately for the proposed 
use as outlined in the analysis above. 
The applicant has submitted a NRCS Web Soil Survey, which shows the predominant soil 
types on site as Buxton/Lamoine and Scantic silt loams (with small areas of 
Tunbridge/Lyman complex rocky soils at the edges of the property). Additional 
geotechnical information was gathered by SW Cole Engineering, on behalf of the 
applicants, which generally confirm the mapping illustrated on the web survey. Onsite soils 
are moderately susceptible to erosion. Thus, pursuant to Section 102.6(M), an erosion 
and sedimentation control program proposal has been submitted. Construction activities 
are proposed to be stabilized through the installation of silt fencing or erosion control 
berms down slope of any disturbed areas (with additional measures at the foot of steep 
slopes or adjacent to the wetland areas) and erosion control blankets or riprap stabilization 
atop steep slopes. Maintenance of the erosion and sedimentation control areas will be the 
responsibility of the site contractor during construction, in accordance with the Maine 
Erosion and Sediment Control Best Management Practices (BMPs) Manual for Designers 
and Engineers (2016). Construction entrances will be stabilized with crushed stone to 
minimize tracking. Temporary stockpiles will be stabilized and protected. Post-
construction, areas not subject to other restoration (e.g. paving or riprap) will be loamed 
and seeded. 



 

Page 10 

 

The erosion and sedimentation control plan, as submitted, is satisfactory to meet the 
requirements of Section 102.6(M). 
 

11. Sec. 102.6(N): Water Supply 
The proposed project is for a 102-bed nursing facility. The applicants anticipate an 85 
gallon per room per day water usage, with a total estimated usage amount of 8,670 
gallons per day. The applicants have provided documentation from the Great Salt Bay 
Sanitary District indicating that they have the ability to provide water to the proposed 
project. 
As the project will be served by both public water and sewer, a hydrogeologic study is 
not required. Materials at the site with the potential to cause groundwater contamination 
may include household cleaning chemicals or fuel tanks. As these will be stored inside 
buildings within normal household quantities, in the opinion of staff, this standard has 
been met. 
 

12. Sec. 102.6(O): Natural Beauty 
Trees near the front property line are proposed to be impacted by the construction of the 
proposed building as well as the easterly emergency access drive. However, the building 
has been sited in an area where historical tree clearing has occurred and which is now 
predominantly an open field. In an effort to replace trees slated for removal, a total of 54 
evergreen trees that are 6’ to 7’ tall are proposed in key areas around the site, including 
at the edge of the emergency access road on the western side of the property, 
surrounding the parking areas, and to highlight the entrance of the building and 
surrounding courtyards. A total of 100 deciduous trees of various heights are also 
proposed in similar key areas. A variety of shrubs and other small landscaping are also 
proposed. Additionally, condition #15 requires that the applicant install fencing around 
the dripline edge of all existing trees designated to be protected, as shown on the plan. 
 
According to wetland delineation conducted in the winter of 2021, no potential vernal 
pool habitat was identified within the project site. 
 
Approximately 14,505 s.f. of freshwater wetlands are proposed to be impacted by the 
proposed development. The proposed wetland impacts must be reviewed under a Tier 1 
permit from the Maine Department of Environmental Protection under the Natural 
Resource Protection Act. The applicants have indicated that this permit is currently 
under review by the DEP.  Additionally, authorization from the Army Corps of Engineers 
is required for the proposed wetland impact. Condition #14 requires the applicants to 
submit documentation to the Town that the DEP permit, as well as authorization from the 
Army Corps of Engineers, have been obtained prior to the release of a building permit.  
 

13. Sec. 102.6(P): Historic and Archeological Resources 
The applicant has submitted documentation from the Maine Historic Preservation 
Commission indicating that no documented archeological or historic resources will be 
impacted by the proposed development. Therefore, this standard has been met. 
 

14. Sec. 102.6(Q): Filling and Excavation 
All excavation will be incidental to the proposed development and are not part of an 
excavation or filling operation. Thus, this standard is not applicable to this project. 

  



 

Page 11 

 

 
15. Sec. 102.6(R): Sewage Disposal 

As discussed in item 7 above, the applicant is proposing to tie into the existing public 
sewer system and has received confirmation from the Great Salt Bay Sanitary District 
that there is adequate capacity to serve the sewage generated from the proposed 
development. Therefore, this standard has been met. 
 

16. Sec. 102.6(S): Phosphorus Control 
The subject property is not located within the watershed of a great pond; therefore, this 
standard is not applicable. 
 

17. Sec. 102.6(T): Buffer Areas 
As described further in item #1 above, buffers have been provided sufficient to meet the 
standards of this section. When natural features in the buffer areas do not exist sufficient 
to screen the proposed development from adjacent properties and from roadways within 
the proposed project, additional landscaping has been provided in accordance with this 
section. The buffer area plantings are diverse, with multiple varieties of trees, evergreen 
trees, and shrubs being used. Condition #16 reaffirms the requirement of this section 
that, if landscaping dies, is removed, or otherwise requires replacement, is not replaced 
within thirty days (or as seasonally required by the species), it shall be considered a 
violation of any approval granted by this Board and shall be subject to enforcement 
provisions. 
 
Fencing is proposed around the trash collection and in the service area. All ground-
mounted mechanical units will be similarly screened.  

 
18. Sec. 102.6(U): Signs 

All signage will be designed to meet the Town of Damariscotta Sign Ordinance and will 
be reviewed by the Code Enforcement Officer in accordance with the provisions of that 
ordinance. 

 
19. Sec. 106.6(V): Building Appearance 

As the proposed building is larger than 7,500 s.f. in floor area, the Large-Scale 
Development Standards for Building Appearance (described in detail under item #20 
below) shall apply. 

 
Large-Scale Development Standards 

20. Sec. 102.7(A): Building Appearance 
Elevations drawings of the building’s exterior have been submitted which include the use 
of pitched roofs, dormers, windows, and vinyl clapboard siding, among other 
architectural details intended to enhance the outward appearance of the building and to 
present a residential aesthetic. No façade extends more than 49 feet without an 
architectural feature, such as an awning or actual protrusion of at least 6 feet. 
 
Additionally, a repeating pattern on each façade is proposed in accordance with this 
section. Colors proposed are of a neutral tone. The main entrance to the facility is clearly 
defined through the use of architectural features as well as landscaping and overall site 
design. 
 



 

Page 12 

 

21. Sec. 102.7(B): Outdoor Sales 
As the development is not for a retail establishment, these standards do not apply. 
 

22. Sec. 102.7(C): Parking 
As described in item #6 above, the parking requirements of Sec. 102.6(H) have been 
met. 
 
Additionally, no off-street parking has been sited between Piper Mill Road and the 
closest façade of the building. Therefore, staff has found the standards of this section to 
have been met. 
 

23. Sec. 102.7(D): Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities 
The applicant has requested a waiver to some of the requirements of this section, as 
described in the waivers section below. Instead of providing sidewalks that are 8-feet in 
width, the applicant is proposing to provide 6-foot-wide sidewalks within the parking 
area, and sidewalks that are 5-feet wide within the courtyard areas.  
 
Condition #17 requires that the applicant install sidewalks along the entirety of the 
frontage of the subject property in accordance with this section. 
 

24. Sec. 102.7(E): Landscaping 
At least 75% of all of the vegetation proposed is native species, sufficient to meet the 
standard of this section. Landscaping is described in greater detail in item #12 above. 
 
More than 30% of the buildings total foundation is planted with landscaping sufficient to 
meet the standard of this section. Additionally, landscaping is proposed in the entrance 
area of the building, in the parking area, as well as along the façade facing Piper Mill 
Road. Thus, staff has found that the standards of this section have been met.  
 

25. Sec. 102.7(F): Screening 
The site plan as proposed incorporates screening and fencing around the trash 
collection area and into the service area. All ground-mounted mechanical units will be 
similarly screened. Propane tanks for the facility will be installed underground to reduce 
the visual impact of essential utility infrastructure.  

 
26. Sec. 102.7(G): Building Reuse 

Submittals related to this standard are not necessary. However, applicants are aware of 
the Selectboard’s rights related to vacant buildings. 
 

27. Sec. 102.7(H): Additional Standards for Large-Scale Developments with a Floor 
Area >20,000 s.f. 

• Sec. 102.7(H)(1): This standard is not applicable to this project, as it 
references construction of retail buildings. The proposed project is for a 
nursing care facility. 

• Sec. 102.7(H)(2): This standard is not applicable to this project, as it 
references construction of a retail building. 

• Sec. 102.7(H)(3): A waiver to this standard has been granted. 
 



 

Page 13 

 

Conditional Use Standards 
28. Sec. 101.9(C)(2)(a): Conditional Uses 

The proposed use will meet the requirements of the Town’s Land Use Ordinance, as 
described in the project data table above, as well as the Site Plan Review Ordinance, as 
described in the analyses above. 
 
The potential effect of the use on the environment (from air, water or soil pollution), 
noise, traffic, congestion, soil erosion, the burden on the public sewer and water systems 
as well as other municipal services have been taken into consideration and have been 
analyzed in the requirements above. As noted, the proposed use will not have an 
adverse effect on the health, safety, or general welfare of the public. 

G. The applicant has requested and the Planning Board has granted the following waivers to the 
relevant standards of review: 

a. Waiver pursuant to Site Plan Review Ordinance Section 102.7(D) to provide 
sidewalks within the parking areas that are 6’ in width, rather than the 8’ width 
required as part of this section and to not raise the sidewalks 6 inches above the 
travel way.  
 

b. Waiver pursuant to Site Plan Review Ordinance Section 102.7(H)(3), which 
requires the applicants to submit an economic and fiscal impact analysis for the 
proposed large-scale development. The applicants have provided the information 
on the items in this section that would be relevant to the Planning Board’s review. 

 
c. Waiver pursuant to Site Plan Review Ordinance Section 102.6(B)(2)(b) with 

respect to the eastern property line only. This section requires the applicant to 
provide a 30-foot minimum buffer strip between the proposed, new property line 
and the paved access drive. 

 

DECISION: 

H. Based on its review of the entire record herein, including the November 7, 2022, December 
5, 2022 and January 3, 2023 staff report; all supporting, referenced, and incorporated 
documents; and all comments received; the Site Plan application of Clippership Landing 
Development, dated through December 23, 2022, and associated drawings stamped and 
dated through October 17, 2022, for the Clippership Landing Nursing Home project at Map 1, 
Lot 50 on Piper Mill Road; is hereby: 

 

 YAE NAE Absent/Abstain 

DENIED    

APPROVED WITH THE CONDITIONS BELOW     



 

Page 14 

 

CONDITIONS 

 Condition Staff 
Assigned 

Must be 
Completed By:   

1.  
This approval is dependent upon and limited to the proposals 
and plans contained in the application and supporting 
documents submitted and affirmed to by the applicant.  Any 
variation from the plans, proposals and supporting documents 
are subject to the review and approval of the Planning Board 
prior to implementation. 

Town 
Planner 

Ongoing 

2.  
All adopted conditions of approval and any waivers granted 
shall appear on the face of the plans submitted for building 
permits, and the face of the subdivision plan, if applicable. 

Code Officer Prior to Issuing 
Building Permit 

3.  
Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall 
pay all outstanding review escrow account fees, post the 
necessary performance guarantee(s) in such amount(s) as 
established by the Town and hold a pre-construction meeting 
with the Town if necessary. 

Town 
Planner 

Prior to Issuing 
Building Permit  

4.  
This Planning Board approval is valid for 12 months from the 
date of approval and shall expire if work has not substantially 
commenced within that time period.  

Code Officer Ongoing 

5.  
Prior to submitting a building permit, the applicant shall submit 
three hard-copy plans at 24” x 36” size to the Town Planner 
with all conditions and waivers listed on the plans. 

Town 
Planner 

Prior to 
Submitting a 
Building Permit 

6.  
The applicant shall secure a Building Permit from the Code 
Enforcement Officer in coordination with the Town Planner, 
Fire Department, and all relevant review authorities, prior to 
commencing any construction activities. 

Code Officer Prior to Issuing 
Building Permit 



 

Page 15 

 

 Condition Staff 
Assigned 

Must be 
Completed By:   

7.  
A waiver has been granted pursuant to Site Plan Review 
Ordinance Section 102.7(D), which allows the applicant to 
provide sidewalks within the parking areas that are 6’ in width, 
rather than the 8’ width required as part of this section and to 
not raise the sidewalks 6 inches above the travel way.  

Town 
Planner 

Ongoing 

8.  
Only the topsoil directly impacted by proposed buildings, 
access ways, and parking areas may be removed from the 
site without returning to the Planning Board for further review, 
per Section 102.6(A). 

Town 
Planner 

Ongoing 

9.  
All exterior lighting fixtures shall be full cut-off (shielded) 
fixtures in accordance with Section 102.6(D). 

Town 
Planner 

Ongoing 

10.  
All noise associated with the proposed development shall be 
regulated in accordance with the provisions of Sec. 102.6. 
Applicants and their contractors are well-advised to familiarize 
themselves with that section of the Town’s Ordinances. 

Code Officer Ongoing 

11.  
Prior to holding a pre-construction meeting and submitting a 
building permit, wetlands and associated setbacks and stream 
setbacks are to be staked to ensure that all erosion and 
sedimentation controls and site disturbance and construction 
activities avoid the protected wetland.  

Town 
Planner 

Prior to 
Submitting a 
Building Permit 

12.  
In order to allow the standard of Sec. 102.6(G)(1) to be met, 
the applicants have submitted a roadway clearing plan for 
existing vegetation found on both sides of Piper Mill Road to 
the west of the proposed service entrance. The clearing of 
vegetation as depicted on the submitted plan must be 
completed at the applicant’s expense prior to the issuance of 
a Certificate of Occupancy. 

Town 
Planner/Code 
Officer 

Prior to Issuing 
Certificate of 
Occupancy 



 

Page 16 

 

 Condition Staff 
Assigned 

Must be 
Completed By:   

13.  
Applicants are required to complete the installation of a 
25mph speed limit sign on Piper Mill Road near the School 
Street intersection, as well as the installation of standard 
curve warning signs on both approaches to the S-curve 
intersection of Piper Mill Road in order to alert drivers to the 
street realignment. 

Town 
Planner/Code 
Officer 

Prior to Issuing 
Certificate of 
Occupancy 

14.  
Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicants are 
required to submit to the Town Planner confirmation from the 
Maine DEP that their Site Location of Development permit 
and their NRPA permit have been approved. Additionally, 
confirmation that the Army Corps of Engineers have approved 
the wetland impacts is required to be submitted prior to the 
issuance of a building permit. 

Town 
Planner 

Prior to Issuing 
Building Permit  

15.  
Prior to submitting a building permit, the applicant shall 
establish fencing at the drip line of all trees that are 
designated for preservation in the approved Site Plan. No 
construction staging or other construction-related activity is 
permitted within the drip line fence barrier. 

Town 
Planner 

Prior to 
Submitting a 
Building Permit 

16.  
If landscaping that dies, is removed, or otherwise requires 
replacement, is not replaced within thirty days (or as 
seasonally required by the species), it shall be considered a 
violation of any approval granted by this Board and shall be 
subject to enforcement provisions. 

Code Officer Ongoing 

17.  
In accordance with Sec. 102.7(D), the applicant shall install 
sidewalks along the frontage of the entirety of the subject 
property (all of the property identified as Tax Map 1, Lot 50 at 
the time of this approval) at their own expense, or will come to 
a mutual agreement with the Town to fund the installation of 
sidewalks along this area. Sidewalks will be installed at no 
cost to the Town. Sidewalk installation shall be completed 
within one year of the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. 

Town 
Planner 

Within 1 year of 
the Occupancy 



 

Page 17 

 

 Condition Staff 
Assigned 

Must be 
Completed By:   

18.  
The final locations and number of hydrants must be approved 
by the Fire Department prior to the applicant submitting any 
building permits for the project. 

Fire 
Dept./Code 
Officer 

Prior to 
Submitting a 
Building Permit 

19.  
The exact location and details of a knox box will be provided 
to and approved by the Fire Department prior to the Issuance 
of a Certificate of Occupancy. 

Fire 
Dept./Code 
Officer 

Prior to Issuing 
Certificate of 
Occupancy 

20.  
A waiver has been granted pursuant to Site Plan Review 
Ordinance Section 102.6(B)(2)(b) with respect to the eastern 
property line only. This section requires the applicant to 
provide a 30-foot minimum buffer strip between the proposed, 
new property line and the paved access drive (see analysis 
above). 

Town 
Planner 

Ongoing 

21.  
A waiver has been granted pursuant to Site Plan Review 
Ordinance Section 102.7(H)(3), which requires the applicants 
to submit an economic and fiscal impact analysis for the 
proposed large-scale development. Instead, the applicants 
provided relevant information to the Planning Board during the 
hearing, negating the need for this requirement. 

Town 
Planner 

Ongoing 

22.  
Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the 
applicants will be required to submit a plan to turn down 
lighting to the minimum extent practical for security purposes 
at night. This will need to be reviewed to the satisfaction of the 
Code Enforcement Officer, Town Planner, and Police Chief. 

Town 
Planner 

Prior to Issuing 
Certificate of 
Occupancy 

Planning Board Signatures: 

 

__________________________________________ 
 

 
__________________________________________ 

 
 

__________________________________________ 



 

Page 18 

 

 
 

__________________________________________ 
 

 
__________________________________________ 



12/27/22, 9:21 AM Town of Damariscotta Maine Mail - RE: Damariscotta - Seeking Opinion re: Land Use Definition of Dwelling

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=74abc5d206&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1752207784216936977%7Cmsg-f%3A1752315613228… 1/2

Isabelle Oechslie <ioechslie@damariscottame.com>

RE: Damariscotta - Seeking Opinion re: Land Use Definition of Dwelling
1 message

Legal Services Dept <legal@memun.org> Thu, Dec 15, 2022 at 4:06 PM
To: Isabelle Oechslie <ioechslie@damariscottame.com>

Dear Isabelle,

 

It seems that the definition of “dwelling unit” in your land use ordinance is determinative here.  It specifically states that
the term “shall not include recreational vehicles or motels, hotels and other similar facilities not equipped with a kitchen.”
Given the fact that these 102 rooms are served by a central kitchen and not individually equipped with a kitchen,  I do not
see how these rooms can be characterized as individual dwelling units, regardless of the duration of their occupancy.
Moreover, since the definition of “multi-family dwelling” is “three or more dwelling units in single or multiple buildings on a
single lot,” I also don’t see how this proposed development could be reviewed as a multi- family dwelling.

 

I think the “nursing care facility” designation is the more appropriate designation for this proposed development.

 

I hope this helps. Please let me know if you need anything further.

 

Sincerely,

Rebecca McMahon, Director
Legal Services Department

Maine Municipal Association
60 Community Drive, Augusta, ME 04330
Phone: 207-623-8428
1-800-452-8786 (in state)
FAX: 207-624-0187
legal@memun.org

 

This e-mail message, including any a�achments, is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain confiden�al and privileged informa�on. Any
unauthorized review, disclosure or distribu�on is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-mail and destroy all copies
of the original message. Thank you.

 

From: Isabelle Oechslie <ioechslie@damariscottame.com>
Sent: Wednesday, December 14, 2022 11:25 AM
To: Legal Services Dept <legal@memun.org>
Subject: Damariscotta - Seeking Opinion re: Land Use Definition of Dwelling

 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking
links, especially from unknown senders.

Good morning,

https://www.google.com/maps/search/60+Community+Drive,+Augusta,+ME+04330?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:legal@memun.org
mailto:ioechslie@damariscottame.com
mailto:legal@memun.org


12/27/22, 9:21 AM Town of Damariscotta Maine Mail - RE: Damariscotta - Seeking Opinion re: Land Use Definition of Dwelling

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=74abc5d206&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1752207784216936977%7Cmsg-f%3A1752315613228… 2/2

I've been asked to seek opinion regarding the land use of a project that our Planning Board is currently reviewing. The 
proposal is for a 102 bed nursing home facility. The application materials are in the Town's Google Drive
here: https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1_D93U8txEQVCXBqp0Oep9llYFGKaZp4G?usp=share_link

Staff (myself and the Code Enforcement Officer) have reviewed this as a "nursing care facility" use, given that they have 
indicated in their application materials that they require a Certificate of Need from the State of Maine Department of 
Health and Human Services and that licensing will be forthcoming. Additionally, the applicants have indicated that the 
facility will be staffed 24 hours per day and have provided information for the Planning Board regarding approximate 
timing of shift changes during the public hearings on this item. For your knowledge, the definition of a nursing care facility 
outlined in our Land Use Ordinance (Sec. 101.4) is as follows: "A facility that provides 24-hour skilled nursing care 
services, rehabilitation and long-term care nursing services to patients or residents. Nursing care facilities are regulated 
and licensed by the State of Maine."

I received a question regarding whether or not the 102 rooms are considered "dwelling units" under the definition of such 
in the same section of our Land Use Ordinances (Sec. 101.4). In this case, we have a couple of pertinent definitions; one 
for dwelling ("A building designed or used as the permanent or seasonal living quarters for one or more families") and one 
for dwelling unit ("A room or group of rooms designed and equipped exclusively for use as permanent, seasonal or 
temporary living quarters for only one family. The term shall include mobile homes, but not recreational vehicles or motels, 
hotels and other similar facilities not equipped with a kitchen.") We also have a use for "multi-family dwellings" (which is 
"Three or more dwelling units in single or multiple buildings on a single lot").

It seems important to also note that the rooms proposed include individual bathrooms, but are served by staff cooking 
meals in three different central kitchens (one each in each wing).

Given the above, should we be reviewing this project under a "nursing care facility" use or a "multi-family dwelling" use in 
your opinion? The point that the questioner provided was that people might be residing in this building for anywhere from 
a few weeks to a few years, depending on their care needs.

Thanks for any help that you can provide - we will be reviewing this application again during the Planning Board's meeting 
in January, so if we could receive an opinion by December 23rd for inclusion in their meeting packet that would be a big 
help.

If there are any questions, I can be reached at (207) 563-5168 the most easily.

Thanks again,

Isabelle Oechslie

Town Planner

Town of Damariscotta

Office: (207) 563-5168

*Now available: Subscribe to be notified when Planning Board agendas are posted!*

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1_D93U8txEQVCXBqp0Oep9llYFGKaZp4G?usp=share_link
https://www.damariscottame.com/sites/g/files/vyhlif4311/f/uploads/land_use_ordinance_06.15.2022.pdf
https://www.damariscottame.com/subscribe






  

 

Mary E. Costigan 
Shareholder 
207-228-7147 direct 
mcostigan@bernsteinshur.com 

 

 

December 23, 2022 
 
 
 
Damariscotta Planning Board 
Town of Damariscotta 
21 School Street  
Damariscotta, ME 04543   

  

 
Re: Clippership Landing Nursing Home  

 
Dear Planning Board Members: 
 
I am writing on behalf of Clippership Landing Development, LLC in regard to their application 
for Site Plan and Conditional Use approval for a proposed nursing care facility at 2 Piper Mill 
Road. It is our understanding from the Board’s deliberations on this project that the Board is, in 
part, analyzing the project’s compliance with the Town’s Comprehensive Plan. This letter is 
intended to provide information regarding the relationship between site plan review and a town’s 
comprehensive plan and to request that the project be assessed in accordance with the applicable 
standards set forth the Site Plan Review Ordinance (the “Ordinance”). 
 
I will first note that compliance with the Comprehensive Plan is not a separate review criterion in 
the Ordinance. Rather, it is one of the many recognized purposes of the Ordinance set forth in 
Section 102.2(K). As such, one purpose of the Ordinance is that compliance with the review 
criteria will result in projects that comply with the Comprehensive Plan. The Board is not required 
nor permitted to do its own, separate analysis as to whether an individual project complies with 
the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The leading caselaw on this topic is from a 2009 case in Fryeburg in which the Maine Law Court 
made several findings regarding the relationship between a comprehensive plan and land use 
ordinances. Notably, the Court found that the comprehensive plan “is visionary, not regulatory” 
and that the ordinances adopted pursuant to the comprehensive plan are its regulatory teeth. 
“A comprehensive plan imposes an obligation on the town, not on private citizens or applicants 
for permits. It dictates how the town effectuates its land use planning obligations. The ordinance 
is the translation of the comprehensive plan's goals into measurable requirements for applicants.” 
Nestle Waters N. Am., Inc. v. Town of Fryeburg, 2009 ME 30, ¶ 16.  
 



 
 

Finally, the Land Use Ordinance was amended by the 2022 Annual Town Meeting to add 
congregate care and independent living facilities, assisted living facilities, institutions or services 
for the disabled, nursing care facilities, residential care facilities, and group care facilities as 
conditional uses in the C1, C2, and Rural districts. By passing the amendments, the Town has 
acknowledged that allowing those uses in those locations is consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan.  
 
We therefore respectfully request that the Planning Board review the proposed development in 
accordance with the standards set forth in the Site Plan Review Ordinance and not in accordance 
with the goals of the comprehensive plan. 
 
Thank you for your time and consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Mary E. Costigan 
 
cc: Daniel Maguire 
 



  

 

  

December 22, 2022 

 

 

 

Damariscotta Planning Board 

Town of Damariscotta 

21 School Street  

Damariscotta, ME 04543   

  

 

Re: Clippership Landing Nursing Home  

 

Dear Planning Board Members: 

 

I am writing to provide some context of the importance of the proposed Clippership Landing 

Development, LLC nursing facility at 2 Piper Mill Road. 

 

For the last several years, LincolnHealth has been looking at various options to make sure that 

nursing and skilled nursing care is available in Lincoln County for years to come. The urgency 

increased year after year, as we watched nursing care facilities close due to inadequate 

reimbursement, lack of staffing, aging facilities and restrictive regulations.  

We have not been immune to sizeable financial losses and regulatory pressures, and we do not 

want Lincoln County to become one of those communities where the closest nursing home is 

multiple hours away.  

Clippership Landing will keep care close to home. It will be built by Sandy River Company, a 

highly respected senior care development firm with a proven track record in the senior care 

arena. North Country Associates, an experienced nursing care provider which operates more than 

25 homes will run the day-to-day operations, while LincolnHealth will provide medical 

leadership by appointing a Medical Director. 

There has been much commentary during this project about finding an alternate site. The reality 

is that we collectively looked at every option, and the Town of Damariscotta and this location 

offered much-needed access to the property, water, power and other amenities that are necessary 



 

 

for long-term sustainability.  All options on the LincolnHealth campuses were evaluated as well 

and were not viable. 

Sandy River Company has built beautiful homes that provides residents with a neighborhood 

feel. If approved, this home will be only the second in Maine with all private rooms. Expert 

landscapers will add to the beauty of the area. 

While I recognize this is not a condition of approval, I ask you to consider the project’s 

importance to our communities.  Without it, there is no guarantee that much-needed nursing care 

will be available in Lincoln County, adding so much hardship to our neighbors, families and 

friends. 

Sincerely, 

 

Cindy Wade 

President, LincolnHealth 

 



T.O. 1ST FLOOR
0'-0"

T.O. WALL
10'-0"

KNOXVAULT 4400 WITH 
(6) BUILDING KEYS

E

GH

A

C

A

6

12

BBBB

E

D

BB

6

12

B

6

12

T.O. RIDGE 3
23'-0 1/4"

L 6

12

4:
12

6:
12

6:
12

T.O. 1ST FLOOR
0'-0"

T.O. WALL
10'-0"

E

H

D

AC

6

12

6

12

AA KKAA

B

A

T.O. RIDGE 3
23'-0 1/4"

J

6:
12

6:
12

T.O. 1ST FLOOR
0'-0"

T.O. WALL
10'-0"

E

H C

D

A

6

12

AA

A

6

12

F F

B
T.O. RIDGE 3

23'-0 1/4"

K

6:
12

6:
12

T.O. 1ST FLOOR
0'-0"

T.O. WALL
10'-0"

K

E

D

HF

AA

6
12

6
12

T.O. RIDGE 3
23'-0 1/4"

T.O. RIDGE 4
26'-3 1/4"

21
:1

2

T.O. 1ST FLOOR
0'-0"

T.O. WALL
10'-0"

K H

E

D

AA

B
T.O. RIDGE 3
23'-0 1/4"

6:
12

VINYL SHAKE SIDING - 4" EXPOSURE

RIDGE VENT

THIN NATURAL STONE VENEER

PVC FASCIA AND TRIM / PANELING

ASPHALT SHINGLES

EXTERIOR HOLLOW METAL DOOR

ALUMINUM ENTRANCE ASSEMBLY

SINGLE-HUNG, FIXED, AND AWNING LOW-E FIBERGLASS WINDOWS

GUTTER SYSTEM - REFER TO ROOF PLAN

VINYL CLAPBOARD SIDING - 4" EXPOSURE

DOWNSPOUT

PTAC UNIT

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

 EXTERIOR MATERIALS LEGEND

J

EXTERIOR ELEVATION NOTES :

1. COLORS ARE FOR GRAPHICAL PURPOSES ONLY.  ACTUAL COLORS MAY VARY.

2. GRADES WILL VARY FROM SHOWN.

K

L

M

T.O. 1ST FLOOR
0'-0"

T.O. WALL
10'-0"

E

D

K

AAAA A

6
12

6

12

T.O. KWALL
19'-9 3/4"

T.O. RIDGE 5
29'-7"

T.O. RIDGE 3
23'-0 1/4"

A B

J

A

J

T.O. RIDGE 4
26'-3 1/4"

H

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

B

T.O. RIDGE ANGLE BAY
16'-1 65/256"

H

A

T.O. 1ST FLOOR
0'-0"

T.O. WALL
10'-0"

A
D

E

D

H K

J

A

J

J

T.O. FLAT ROOF DECK
15'-7 3/4"

J J

B

A

T.O. RIDGE 5
29'-7"

T.O. RIDGE 2
19'-1 3/4"

K

T.O. RIDGE 4
26'-3 1/4"

6

12

6

12

6

12
6

12

6

12

6

12

6:
12

6:
12

A
T.O. 1ST FLOOR
0'-0"

T.O. WALL
10'-0"

K

E

D

HF

6

12

6

12

A

T.O. RIDGE 5
29'-7"

T.O. RIDGE 2
19'-1 3/4"

K F

J

A

A A A A
D D CC

T.O. RIDGE 4
26'-3 1/4"

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

6
12

6
12

B

T.O. RIDGE ANGLE BAY
16'-1 65/256"

M

T.O. 1ST FLOOR
0'-0"

T.O. WALL
10'-0"

E

DHK KF

6

12
6

12

D D

A A A

F

A
CC

T.O. RIDGE 5
29'-7"

T.O. RIDGE 3
23'-0 1/4"

H

T.O. RIDGE 4
26'-3 1/4"

A

J

A

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

D

E B

6
12

6
12

T.O. RIDGE ANGLE BAY
16'-1 65/256"

M

T.O. 1ST FLOOR
0'-0"

T.O. WALL
10'-0"

D

E

D

KH

6

12

6

12

6

12

J J

J

K

K

B

J J

T.O. RIDGE 5
29'-7"

T.O. RIDGE 2
19'-1 3/4"

A

B/ TRUSS ELEV.
11'-7"

T.O. RIDGE 4
26'-3 1/4"

E

K

6

12

6:
12

6
12

6

12

M

A

D

C

A

B

K1
P10

O1

R1

O6

L1
0

F1

A1

A1
4

F1
0

GAWRON ARCHITECTS IS PROHIBITED

COPYRIGHT 1985-2022

WRITTEN PERMISSION OF
THIS DOCUMENT WITHOUT
REPRODUCTION OR REUSE OF
C

DRAWN BY:

DRAWING SCALE

CHECKED BY:

DATE:

PROJECT #

# DESCRIPTION

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

B
C

D
E

G
F

H
J

L
K

M
N

P
O

Q
R

201

A

SHEET TITLE

REVISIONS
DATE

21 22 23 24 25

S
T

U
V

As indicated

7/
15
/2
02
2 
9:
26
:4
5 
A
M A401

RLD

DML

020722

07.12.2022

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

CL
IP

PE
R 

SH
IP

 L
AN

DI
NG

PI
PE

R
 M

IL
L 

R
O

AD
D

AM
AR

IS
C

O
TT

A,
 M

AI
N

E 
04

54
3

D
M
L

 1/4" = 1'-0"

P10 EXTERIOR BUILDING ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"

K1 EXTERIOR BUILDING ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"

O1 EXTERIOR BUILDING ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"

R1 EXTERIOR BUILDING ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"

O6 EXTERIOR BUILDING ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"

L10 EXTERIOR BUILDING ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"

F1 EXTERIOR BUILDING ELEVATION
 1/8" = 1'-0"

F10 EXTERIOR BUILDING ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"

A1 EXTERIOR BUILDING ELEVATION
 1/8" = 1'-0"

A14 EXTERIOR BUILDING ELEVATION

P22 EXT. MAT. LEGEND
NTS

A22 KEY PLAN
NTS



T.O. 1ST FLOOR
0'-0"

T.O. WALL
10'-0"

K

A

E

D

H

B

J

A

J

T.O. FLAT ROOF DECK
15'-7 3/4"

K

JJ

T.O. RIDGE 5
29'-7"

T.O. RIDGE 2
19'-1 3/4"

T.O. RIDGE 4
26'-3 1/4"

J

A

6

12

6

12

6

12

6

12

D

6:
12

6:
12

D

M

6

12
6

12

T.O. 1ST FLOOR
0'-0"

T.O. WALL
10'-0"

K

A

DHK

J

T.O. FLAT ROOF DECK
15'-7 3/4"

6

12
6

12

B

J

T.O. RIDGE 5
29'-7"

T.O. RIDGE 2
19'-1 3/4"

B/ TRUSS ELEV.
11'-7"

T.O. RIDGE 4
26'-3 1/4"

J

A

J

E
J

A

D

6:
12

6

12

6

12

6

12

6

12

M

T.O. 1ST FLOOR
0'-0"

T.O. WALL
10'-0"

T.O. PARAPET
17'-6"

A AAA

K

E

H

B

4

12

D

T.O. KWALL
19'-9 3/4"

T.O. RIDGE 5
29'-7"

T.O. RIDGE 4
26'-3 1/4"

D

J

A A

J

BA A A A A

6:
12

6:
126:
12

6:
12

6

12
6

12

M K M

T.O. 1ST FLOOR
0'-0"

T.O. WALL
10'-0"

T.O. PARAPET
17'-6"

K E

FH

AA

T.O. RIDGE 4
26'-3 1/4"

D

AAAA

4:
126

12
6

12

6:
12

AA

T.O. 1ST FLOOR
0'-0"

T.O. WALL
10'-0"

K

E

D

H

B

6
12

6
12

A A A A AAAA

T.O. RIDGE 5
29'-7"

T.O. RIDGE 2
19'-1 3/4"

T.O. RIDGE 4
26'-3 1/4"

J J

AA AA AAA

K

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

6:
124.24

12

M

T.O. 1ST FLOOR
0'-0"

T.O. WALL
10'-0"

A

E

D

HK

CDC

T.O. RIDGE 5
29'-7"

D

T.O. RIDGE 4
26'-3 1/4"

F

J

A A A A

B

6

12
6

12

6
12

6
12

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

T.O. RIDGE ANGLE BAY
16'-1 65/256"

M

6:
12

CC

T.O. 1ST FLOOR
0'-0"

T.O. WALL
10'-0"

B E

D

H FK

6
12

A

J

A

6
12

K

T.O. RIDGE 5
29'-7"

T.O. RIDGE 2
19'-1 3/4"

D

T.O. RIDGE 4
26'-3 1/4"

A AA A

A

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

6
12

6
12

T.O. RIDGE ANGLE BAY
16'-1 65/256"

H

VINYL SHAKE SIDING - 4" EXPOSURE

RIDGE VENT

THIN NATURAL STONE VENEER

PVC FASCIA AND TRIM / PANELING

ASPHALT SHINGLES

EXTERIOR HOLLOW METAL DOOR

ALUMINUM ENTRANCE ASSEMBLY

SINGLE-HUNG, FIXED, AND AWNING LOW-E FIBERGLASS WINDOWS

GUTTER SYSTEM - REFER TO ROOF PLAN

VINYL CLAPBOARD SIDING - 4" EXPOSURE

DOWNSPOUT

PTAC UNIT

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

 EXTERIOR MATERIALS LEGEND

J

EXTERIOR ELEVATION NOTES :

1. COLORS ARE FOR GRAPHICAL PURPOSES ONLY.  ACTUAL COLORS MAY VARY.

2. GRADES WILL VARY FROM SHOWN.

K

L

M

D

C

A

B
L1

A1
1

Q1
7

F1F1
3

A1

Q1

T.O. 1ST FLOOR
0'-0"

T.O. WALL
10'-0"

T.O. PARAPET
17'-6"

C CC

D

H

A E

T.O. RIDGE ANGLE BAY
16'-1 65/256"

6

12

6

12

GAWRON ARCHITECTS IS PROHIBITED

COPYRIGHT 1985-2022

WRITTEN PERMISSION OF
THIS DOCUMENT WITHOUT
REPRODUCTION OR REUSE OF
C

DRAWN BY:

DRAWING SCALE

CHECKED BY:

DATE:

PROJECT #

# DESCRIPTION

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

B
C

D
E

G
F

H
J

L
K

M
N

P
O

Q
R

201

A

SHEET TITLE

REVISIONS
DATE

21 22 23 24 25

S
T

U
V

As indicated

7/
15
/2
02
2 
9:
26
:5
2 
A
M A402

RLD

DML

020722

07.12.2022

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

CL
IP

PE
R 

SH
IP

 L
AN

DI
NG

PI
PE

R
 M

IL
L 

R
O

AD
D

AM
AR

IS
C

O
TT

A,
 M

AI
N

E 
04

54
3

D
M
L

 1/8" = 1'-0"

A1 EXTERIOR BUILDING ELEVATION
 1/8" = 1'-0"

A11 EXTERIOR BUILDING ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"

L1 EXTERIOR BUILDING ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"

Q17 EXTERIOR BUILDING ELEVATION
 1/8" = 1'-0"

Q1 EXTERIOR BUILDING ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"

F1 EXTERIOR BUILDING ELEVATION
 1/8" = 1'-0"

F13 EXTERIOR BUILDING ELEVATION

Q22 EXT. MAT. LEGEND
NTS

A22 KEY PLAN
NTS

 1/4" = 1'-0"

L18 EXTERIOR BUILDING ELEVATION



T.O. 1ST FLOOR
0'-0"

T.O. WALL
10'-0"

K

A

E

D

H

B

J

A

J

T.O. FLAT ROOF DECK
15'-7 3/4"

K

JJ

T.O. RIDGE 5
29'-7"

T.O. RIDGE 2
19'-1 3/4"

T.O. RIDGE 4
26'-3 1/4"

J

A

6

12
6

12

6

12
6

12

6:
12 6:
12

6:
12

D

M

T.O. 1ST FLOOR
0'-0"

T.O. WALL
10'-0"

T.O. WALL
10'-0"

E

D

H KF

A

F

D

A

B
T.O. RIDGE 5

29'-7"

T.O. RIDGE 2
19'-1 3/4"

T.O. RIDGE 4
26'-3 1/4"

J

A A

C C

A A

6:
12 6:

12

6:
12

6:
12

4:
12

6
12

6
12

T.O. RIDGE ANGLE BAY
16'-1 65/256"

M

T.O. 1ST FLOOR
0'-0"

T.O. WALL
10'-0"

E

D

H KF

D
A A

B
T.O. RIDGE 5
29'-7"

T.O. RIDGE 2
19'-1 3/4"

T.O. RIDGE 4
26'-3 1/4"

F

A

A

J

D

C C
A

6
12

6
12 6:

12

6:
12

6:
12

K

4:
12

T.O. RIDGE ANGLE BAY
16'-1 65/256"

M

T.O. 1ST FLOOR
0'-0"

T.O. WALL
10'-0"

E

D

H

6

12

D

T.O. FLAT ROOF DECK
15'-7 3/4"

J J

A

T.O. RIDGE 5
29'-7"

T.O. RIDGE 2
19'-1 3/4"

M

T.O. RIDGE 4
26'-3 1/4"

J

A

J

A

6

12

6

12

6

12

6

12

6

12

6:
12

6:
12

K

B

6:
12

T.O. 1ST FLOOR
0'-0"

T.O. WALL
10'-0"

A

E

D

H

B

6

12

6

12

A A

A

6

126

12

K

T.O. KWALL
19'-9 3/4"

T.O. RIDGE 5
29'-7"

J

K

T.O. RIDGE 4
26'-3 1/4"

AA A A A A A A

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

M

T.O. RIDGE ANGLE BAY
16'-1 65/256"

T.O. 1ST FLOOR
0'-0"

T.O. WALL
10'-0"

K

D

H

BB BB

T.O. KWALL
19'-9 3/4"

T.O. RIDGE 4
26'-3 1/4"

BB

T.O. 1ST FLOOR
0'-0"

T.O. WALL
10'-0"

E

D

HK

A

T.O. FLAT ROOF DECK
15'-7 3/4"

6
12

6
12

B

K

B

T.O. RIDGE 5
29'-7"

T.O. RIDGE 4
26'-3 1/4"

A A A

J

A A A A

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

6

12

T.O. RIDGE ANGLE BAY
16'-1 65/256"

M

VINYL SHAKE SIDING - 4" EXPOSURE

RIDGE VENT

THIN NATURAL STONE VENEER

PVC FASCIA AND TRIM / PANELING

ASPHALT SHINGLES

EXTERIOR HOLLOW METAL DOOR

ALUMINUM ENTRANCE ASSEMBLY

SINGLE-HUNG, FIXED, AND AWNING LOW-E FIBERGLASS WINDOWS

GUTTER SYSTEM - REFER TO ROOF PLAN

VINYL CLAPBOARD SIDING - 4" EXPOSURE

DOWNSPOUT

PTAC UNIT

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

 EXTERIOR MATERIALS LEGEND

J

EXTERIOR ELEVATION NOTES :

1. COLORS ARE FOR GRAPHICAL PURPOSES ONLY.  ACTUAL COLORS MAY VARY.

2. GRADES WILL VARY FROM SHOWN.

K

L

M

D

C

A

B

A1

Q1

Q8

L1

F1

L1
3

A1
4

F1
1

T.O. 1ST FLOOR
0'-0"

T.O. WALL
10'-0"

K

E

D

M

B

6
12

A AA

6

12

T.O. RIDGE 5
29'-7"

T.O. RIDGE 2
19'-1 3/4"

T.O. RIDGE 4
26'-3 1/4"

A AAAA

J

A A A A A

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

6

12

H

GAWRON ARCHITECTS IS PROHIBITED

COPYRIGHT 1985-2022

WRITTEN PERMISSION OF
THIS DOCUMENT WITHOUT
REPRODUCTION OR REUSE OF
C

DRAWN BY:

DRAWING SCALE

CHECKED BY:

DATE:

PROJECT #

# DESCRIPTION

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

B
C

D
E

G
F

H
J

L
K

M
N

P
O

Q
R

201

A

SHEET TITLE

REVISIONS
DATE

21 22 23 24 25

S
T

U
V

As indicated

7/
15
/2
02
2 
9:
27
:0
0 
A
M A403

RLD

DML

020722

07.12.2022

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

CL
IP

PE
R 

SH
IP

 L
AN

DI
NG

PI
PE

R
 M

IL
L 

R
O

AD
D

AM
AR

IS
C

O
TT

A,
 M

AI
N

E 
04

54
3

D
M
L

 1/8" = 1'-0"

F1 EXTERIOR BUILDING ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"

L13 EXTERIOR BUILDING ELEVATION
 1/8" = 1'-0"

L1 EXTERIOR BUILDING ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"

A14 EXTERIOR BUILDING ELEVATION
 1/8" = 1'-0"

A1 EXTERIOR BUILDING ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"

Q1 EXTERIOR BUILDING ELEVATION
 1/8" = 1'-0"

Q8 EXTERIOR BUILDING ELEVATION Q22 EXT. MAT. LEGEND
NTS

A22 KEY PLAN
NTS

 1/8" = 1'-0"

F11 EXTERIOR BUILDING ELEVATION



CLIPPER SHIP LANDING
SCHEMATIC RENDERING



LEGEND

CIRCULATION

COMMON AREA

RESIDENT ROOM

RESIDENT SERVICES

STAFF/UTILITIES

UTILITIES

166 SF
ADMISSIONS

663 SF
MECH/ELEC/SPRINKLER

87 SF

FOOD
SERVICE

209 SF
PRIVATE

250 SF
PRIVATE

253 SF
PRIVATE

296 SF
BARIATRIC

209 SF
PRIVATE

252 SF
PRIVATE

260 SF
PRIVATE

209 SF
PRIVATE

209 SF
PRIVATE

209 SF
PRIVATE

253 SF
PRIVATE

102 SF

CENTRAL
OFFICE

282 SF
BARIATRIC

250 SF
PRIVATE

252 SF
PRIVATE

258 SF
PRIVATE

84 SF
CLEAN/MED.

209 SF
PRIVATE

209 SF
PRIVATE

256 SF
PRIVATE

255 SF
PRIVATE

263 SF
PRIVATE

249 SF
PRIVATE

254 SF
PRIVATE

256 SF
PRIVATE

262 SF
PRIVATE

249 SF
PRIVATE

209 SF
PRIVATE

209 SF
PRIVATE

209 SF
PRIVATE

82 SF
CLEAN/MED.

209 SF
PRIVATE

1263 SF
PT/OT

401 SF
MAIN LOBBY

91 SF
VESTIBULE

83 SF
TLT.

123 SF
EXIT

439 SF

NEIGHBORHOOD
ENTRY

512 SF
CORRIDOR

328 SF
CORRIDOR

64
7 

SF
C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

393 SF

NEIGHBORHOOD
ENTRY

977 SF
CORRIDOR

70
8 

SF
C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

43
2 

SF
C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

219 SF

NEIGHBORHOOD
ENTRY 768 SF

CORRIDOR

93 SF

SHARED
BATH

58 SF

BATH

117 SF
RECEPT.

12
3 

SF
EX

IT

12
3 

SF
EX

IT

138 SF
TELE/EXAM

118 SF

MDS
COORD.

259 SF
PRIVATE

12
3 

SF
EX

IT

258 SF
PRIVATE

260 SF
PRIVATE

260 SF
PRIVATE

93 SF

SHARED
BATH

209 SF
PRIVATE

251 SF
PRIVATE

209 SF
PRIVATE

93 SF

SHARED
BATH

209 SF
PRIVATE

58 SF
BATH

259 SF
PRIVATE

123 SF

EXIT

253 SF
PRIVATE

258 SF
PRIVATE

252 SF
PRIVATE

260 SF
PRIVATE

93 SF

SHARED
BATH

58 SF
BATH

209 SF
PRIVATE

258 SF
PRIVATE

58 SF
BATH

55 SF
BATH

260 SF
PRIVATE

229 SF
PRIVATE

259 SF
PRIVATE

209 SF
PRIVATE

58 SF
BATH

209 SF
PRIVATE

58 SF
BATH

438 SF

LAUNDRY
CLEAN

416 SF

LAUNDRY
DIRTY

23
5 

SF
M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
C

E

320 SF
SALON

1528 SF

COMM.
KITCHEN

410 SF

STAFF
LOUNGE

82 SF
CLEAN/MED.

485 SF

LIVING
ROOM

82 SF
CLEAN/MED.

193 SF
SPA

74 SF
SHWR

92
 S

F
LO

C
KE

R
S

173 SF
ADMINISTRATOR

100 SF

BUSINESS
OFFICE

551 SF

SERVICE
CORRIDOR

778 SF

CONF.
ROOM

288 SF

COUNTRY
KITCHEN

123 SF

STOR.

58 SF

BATH

1103 SF

DINING
ROOM

304 SF

LIVING
ROOM

1048 SF

DINING
ROOM

204 SF

COUNTRY
KITCHEN

184 SF
STORAGE

1099 SF

DINING
ROOM

60 SF
TEL./CO.

102 SF

ACTIVITIES
OFFICE

118 SF
NURSE

165 SF
NURSE

82 SF
SOILED

59 SF
SOILED

67 SF
SOILED

102 SF
STORAGE

225 SF
NURSE

358 SF
PARLOR

71 SF
TOILET

162 SF

CENTRAL
OFFICE

64 SF
TLT.

171 SF

MEDICAL
PROVIDERS

110 SF

SITTING
AREA

140 SF

REHAB
DIRECTOR

159 SF
SPA

101 SF

SOCIAL
SERVICES

OUTDOOR 
COURTYARD

OUTDOOR 
COURTYARD

OUTDOOR 
COURTYARD

OUTDOOR 
COURTYARD

GARDEN

COVERED 
MAIN 

ENTRY

135 SF
QUIET ROOM

209 SF
PRIVATE

209 SF
PRIVATE

209 SF
PRIVATE

209 SF
PRIVATE

655 SF
CORRIDOR

625 SF
CORRIDOR

224 SF
CORRIDOR

230 SF
CORRIDOR

67
6 

SF
C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

23
5 

SF
C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

353 SF
CORRIDOR

235 SF
CORRIDOR

22
7 

SF
C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

230 SF
CORRIDOR

91 SF
STORAGE

209 SF
PRIVATE

60 SF
SOILED

209 SF
PRIVATE

209 SF
PRIVATE

209 SF
PRIVATE

253 SF
PRIVATE

109 SF
BATH

58 SF
BATH

58 SF
BATH

58 SF
BATH

58 SF
BATH

58 SF
BATH

209 SF
PRIVATE

209 SF
PRIVATE

253 SF
PRIVATE

208 SF

PRIVATE

58 SF
BATH

58 SF
BATH

58 SF
BATH

58 SF
BATH

54 SF
BATH

54 SF
BATH

54 SF
BATH

54 SF
BATH

54 SF
BATH

254 SF
PRIVATE

251 SF
PRIVATE

253 SF
PRIVATE

230 SF
PRIVATE

253 SF
PRIVATE

230 SF
PRIVATE

229 SF
PRIVATE

230 SF
PRIVATE

229 SF
PRIVATE

230 SF
PRIVATE

229 SF
PRIVATE

257 SF
PRIVATE

259 SF
PRIVATE

259 SF
PRIVATE

82 SF
CLEAN/MED.

42 SF
ELEC.

88 SF
SOILED

240 SF
NURSE

142 SF
STORAGE

276 SF

LIVING
ROOM

275 SF

LIVING
ROOM

260 SF
PRIVATE

229 SF
PRIVATE

253 SF
PRIVATE

259 SF
PRIVATE

93 SF

SHARED
BATH

54 SF
BATH

54 SF
BATH

54 SF
BATH

123 SF
EXIT

25
6 

SF
C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

52
2 

SF
C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

27
9 

SF
C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

230 SF
PRIVATE

228 SF
PRIVATE

230 SF
PRIVATE

229 SF
PRIVATE

230 SF
PRIVATE

258 SF
PRIVATE

278 SF
BARIATRIC

253 SF
PRIVATE

258 SF
PRIVATE

259 SF
PRIVATE

253 SF
PRIVATE

251 SF
PRIVATE

54 SF
BATH

54 SF
BATH

54 SF
BATH

63 SF
TEL./CO.

60 SF
JAN.

80
5 

SF
C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

209 SF
PRIVATE

209 SF
PRIVATE

58 SF
BATH

258 SF
PRIVATE

93 SF

SHARED
BATH

93 SF

SHARED
BATH

351 SF

LIVING
ROOM

136 SF

CENTRAL
OFFICE

82 SF
CLEAN/MED.

82
 S

F
SO

IL
ED

91 SF
ACTIVITIES

64
 S

F
TE

L.
/C

O
.

100 SF
STORAGE

141 SF
CORRIDOR

209 SF
PRIVATE

209 SF
PRIVATE

58 SF
BATH

58 SF
BATH

93 SF

SHARED
BATH

93 SF

SHARED
BATH

33
9 

SF
C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

32
7 

SF
C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

61 SF
ELEC.

120 SF
NURSE

61 SF
JAN.

70 SF
TOILET

58 SF
BATH

209 SF
PRIVATE58 SF

BATH

58 SF
BATH

58 SF
BATH

58 SF
BATH

253 SF
PRIVATE

258 SF
PRIVATE

260 SF
PRIVATE

93 SF

SHARED
BATH

93 SF

SHARED
BATH

93 SF

SHARED
BATH

93 SF

SHARED
BATH

58 SF
BATH

58 SF
BATH

209 SF
PRIVATE

105 SF
BATH

59 SF
BATH

29
9 

SF
C

O
R

R
ID

O
R10

3 
SF

C
O

R
R

ID
O

R

507 SF

LIVING
ROOM

58 SF
BATH

58 SF
BATH

58 SF
BATH

58 SF
BATH

58 SF
BATH

58 SF
BATH

93 SF

SHARED
BATH

93 SF

SHARED
BATH

93 SF

SHARED
BATH

93 SF

SHARED
BATH

91 SF
STORAGE

23
5 

SF
C

O
R

R
ID

O
R 330 SF

CORRIDOR

93 SF

SHARED
BATH

93 SF

SHARED
BATH

93 SF

SHARED
BATH

54 SF
BATH

54 SF
BATH

54 SF
BATH

54 SF
BATH

54 SF
BATH

111 SF
BATH

93 SF

SHARED
BATH

93 SF

SHARED
BATH

93 SF

SHARED
BATH

93 SF

SHARED
BATH

276 SF

COUNTRY
KITCHEN

70 SF
TOILET

184 SF
NURSE

31 SF
OXYGEN

257 SF
D.O.N.

27
0 

SF
C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

898 SF
CORRIDOR

589 SF
CORRIDOR

207 SF
CORRIDOR

137 SF
CORRIDOR

23
0 

SF
C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

94 SF
OFFICE

40 SF
STOR.

82 SF
STORAGE

44 SF
STORAGE

96 SF
OFFICE

282 SF
CORRIDOR

CLIPPER SHIP LANDING
GROUND FLOOR LAYOUT





 



 



12/27/22, 9:18 AM Town of Damariscotta Maine Mail - Tier 1 review for Clipper Ship

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=74abc5d206&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1751573385346956252%7Cmsg-f%3A1751573385346… 1/1

Isabelle Oechslie <ioechslie@damariscottame.com>

Tier 1 review for Clipper Ship
1 message

Jennifer Fox <foxhaus@outlook.com> Wed, Dec 7, 2022 at 11:29 AM
To: Isabelle Oechslie <ioechslie@damariscottame.com>

Isabelle,

I sought out more information from MEDEP on the tier 1 wetlands review for the Clipper Ship application. Is the planning
board aware this application is tied to the applicant's SLODA application, due to more than 3 acres of structures proposed
for the site, and has a review deadline of March 2023?  There will not be a ruling in a few weeks on the wetlands
application. I am surprised the developer thought this was the case.

Please share my email with the planning board.

Thank you,
Jennifer Fox

Get Outlook for Android

https://aka.ms/AAb9ysg


12/27/22, 9:19 AM Town of Damariscotta Maine Mail - Opposition to the proposed 102 room Nursing home

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=74abc5d206&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1751939195549501963%7Cmsg-f%3A1751939195549… 1/1

Isabelle Oechslie <ioechslie@damariscottame.com>

Opposition to the proposed 102 room Nursing home
1 message

Lucy Smith <lucys@tidewater.net> Sun, Dec 11, 2022 at 12:23 PM
To: Isabelle Oechslie <ioechslie@damariscottame.com>

We are concerned about loosing the quality of our neighborhood here on High Street due to the exponential increase in
traffic resulting from the proposed nursing facility. The  proximity to the rifle range, loss of green space and wetlands and
light pollution are also major concerns. Loss of quality of neighborhood translates to the loss of the charm and character
of Damariscotta.

High Street has a diversity of residents. On this short, narrow street with no sidewalks you are likely to see someone
being taken for a wheelchair walk, a father pulling his child in a little red wagon, multiple people walking their dogs and
cars stopped to have a chat with their walking friends.

We are not against nursing homes, however this project is too much, too big and too fast. There is a way to satisfy the
needs of our special community without sacrificing its character.

Realizing Lincoln Health and it’s business partners have checked all the boxes for development, shouldn’t blind the fact
building such a large facility so close to residents has its pitfalls.

Peter Jackson and Lucy Smith
23 High Street
Damariscotta



11/21/22, 8:01 AM Town of Damariscotta Maine Mail - The proposed 102 Bed Nursing Facility on Piper Mill Road

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=74abc5d206&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1749957506088739552%7Cmsg-f%3A1749957506088… 1/1

Isabelle Oechslie <ioechslie@damariscottame.com>

The proposed 102 Bed Nursing Facility on Piper Mill Road 
1 message

Diane Ranes <diane6020@gmail.com> Sat, Nov 19, 2022 at 3:25 PM
To: ioechslie@damariscottame.com

Dear Ms. Oechslie, 

I live at 12 Brickyard Cove Lane in Damariscotta and take the School St, Road daily.   I was actually surprised to see town
residents claim that the road is “already busy” at the town meeting.   That was quite an overstatement in my experience. 
It is true (and I have written in the past to Robin Mayer when she was a Selectman), about the problems at the
intersection of School Street and Main Street where a light is needed.  In my experience, multiple times a day, that  is the
only place where 2-3 cars back up waiting to make the dangerous crossing on to the next segment of the road.   Perhaps
a light is needed there.   

That said, it is a poor equation to stop the development of badly needed nursing care facilities for all of us who are aging
because of an unrelated (and perhaps more overstated) traffic issue. 

I am a retired mental health professional, but as a citizen of Maine and the town, I am writing in support of the very great
need to put a nursing facility in our town.     

As you already know, aging baby boomers in the US are living longer and further away from children all the time.  Here in
Maine, many of our young people leave for better opportunities and are not available for family assistance to seniors
(which makes up 95% of in home aging care”.   Since we are living in the oldest demographically aged county in Maine,
we need to prepare for the growing problems of againg and chronic illnesses that require support.  The US Census burea
points out that the senior population in the country will double by 2060 (US Population Reference Bureau).  We are soon
to go from underserved in this county, to badly underserved for aging health care services.   Many adults locally will also
be divorced, widowed or single by choice and may not have a partner to care for them.  Others may need facilities for
financial as well as health care needs.  
All these facts line up with the reality that family members available to support our seniors are limited and our health care
system is already limited.  

Formal care is badly needed both immediately and as preparation for the future.   Please support this proposal as we
need more nursing services — both to care for those who need care and to provide jobs for younger professionals to
return to Maine and build family lives here. 

Thank you for listening and I hope to see the town Planning Board accept the proposal.   

Sincerely, 

Diane 

Diane H. Ranes, PHD MSW. 
12 Brickyard Cove Lane 
Damariscotta ME 04543 



Letter to Editor of Lincoln County News

cc: Damariscotta Planning Board, Select Board, Town Manager, Coastal Rivers 
Conservation Trust


     The proposed Clippership Landing facility for senior/assisted living in the 
Piper Mills area has significant valid arguments for denying its approval.  
While there is a realistic need for this type of facility in our community, 
another section in town should be located that does not have an irreversible 
and extremely negative environmental impact. 

     It would strongly alter a prime animal wildlife corridor and protected 
wetlands.   
     The dark skies which are crucial to migratory patterns, and the circadian 
rhythms of both humans and animals, would be forever dented by the 
necessity of abundant artificial lighting. 
     There will surely be many, many more animals run over by increased 
vehicle traffic. 

     We are all aware that automobiles are prone to fluid leakage.  These dribble 
into the ground and runoff into ponds/lakes/drains/and such. 

     I have over a decade of personal experience living in a residence that is 
bordered by this same wildlife corridor and protected wetlands.  Full grown 
moose have strolled my property, at times crossing over Bristol Road headed 
toward Miles Campus ponds.   

     Skunks frequently have made their “presence” noticed.  Image how much 
more of an increased perpetual need to release their protective spray will be 
forthcoming due to this considerable human invasion now permanently 
residing in their home turf.    I can testify that when the weather allows for 
having my home and car windows open, this strong scent aggressively invades 
and lingers for days, and even weeks. 
     Skunks can accurately spray up to 15 feet.  Senior and handicapped 
residents out for a stroll might have a challenge outdistancing themselves from 
their emission.  While the spray does not lead to permanent damage, it can 
cause significant eye irritation and possible temporary blindness (to pets as 
well).   

Yours, 
Shari Sage 
92 Bristol Road 



PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES                                                                                                                                                        
TOWN of DAMARISCOTTA                                                                                                                      
December 5, 2022   6:00 P.M.   

Live and via Zoom 

                                                                                                                                                                     
MEMBERS:  Jonathan Eaton, Chairperson; Jenny Begin, Neil Genthner, Wilder Hunt and Ann Jackson                                                                                                                                                   
ALTERNATES:  Gary Rosenthal, and Dan Day                                                                                                       
ABSENTEES:   Ann Jackson; Gary Rosenthal                                                                                                                                                                                  
STAFF PRESENT:  Isabelle Oechslie, Town Planner; Lynda Letteney, Recording Secretary                                                                                                                                                                                            
PUBLIC PRESENT:   Brooks Betts, Daniel Maguire, Sandy River (Clippership); Rebecca Dillon, 
Gawron Turgeon Architects (for Clippership); Andy Johnston, Atlantic Resource Consultants (for 
Clippership); Blaine Buck, applicant’s representative (Clippership); Meg Robbins, DC Ledgewood, LLC; 
Steve Bushey, (Gorrill-Palmer Consulting Engineers, for DC Ledgewood, LLC); Steve Weatherhead, DC 
Ledgewood, LLC; Andrea Keushguerian, resident; Tom Hausmann, abutter: Amy Lalime, resident; Geoff 
Keochakian, abutter; Larry Sidelinger, LCTV;  Evan Houk, Lincoln County News 

I. Pledge of Allegiance                                                                                                                          
Chairperson Eaton led the Pledge at 6:00 p.m. 

II. CALL TO ORDER                                                                                                                                   
The meeting was called to order at 6:02 p.m. by Chairperson Eaton                                                                                 
On motion (Genthner/Hunt) to appoint Dan Day as the alternate in place of regular member Ann 
Jackson with all voting rights and privileges for this meeting 12/5/22.   Vote:  4-0-0  

                                                                            
IV.   BUSINESS MEETING                                                                                                                                       
 A.  OLD BUSINESS                                                                                                                                             
       1.   Continuation of Public Hearing begun 11/7/22, continued until tonight’s meeting 
12/5/22.   Rebecca Dillon provided a presentation on anticipated scenic impacts, showing mark-ups of 
how the project will look from School Street.  

Jennifer Fox of High St. began the public comment.  “If the current vegetation is removed, what 
remains?”  She is concerned about the impact that this project may have on the community feel. Scenic 
impact as seen from Newcastle up the hill is also a concern.  She said she was not looking to stop the 
project, but is looking for detailed planning.  Jonathan Eaton commented about the lack of visibility 
from Newcastle and the gateway to Damariscotta. Tom Hausmann, 53 High Street, felt the pictures 
presented were not giving the whole view.  He encouraged the Board to look at Clippership in Rockland 
and see what a massive project this is in comparison to others in Damariscotta.  He said it is enormous, 
75,000 sq. ft. is hard to imagine. Geoff Keochakian, 86 School Street, began by saying that the Planning 
Board had the responsibility to look at the criteria for such a project.  “But, what about the “spirit” of the 
project – does it fit the community?”  School Street already has a traffic problem.  The Rifle Club is 
concerned it might become an unfriendly neighbor.  As far as High Street, he feels that the increase in 
traffic will be huge.  The wetlands variance, in his opinion, doesn’t fit.  Isabelle interjected that there are 
differences between waivers and variances.  Variances are subject to strict State standards and must be 



granted by the Board of Appeals, whereas waivers are frequently granted by Planning Boards based on 
good cause and evidence shown.  Geoff said he meant waivers.  Jennifer Fox asked if the larger parking 
lot required a waiver.  Isabelle responded saying the Town ordinance provides minimum parking 
requirements only, but that Damariscotta does not have parking maximums.  Jenny Begin said there is a 
lot coverage requirement regarding impervious surface for storm water.  Andy Johnston said there is a 
threshold of 3 acres or more, but there are no lot coverage requirements.                                                           

Andrea Keushguerian, Water Street, is concerned about the light pollution from the top of the hill.  It 
will be seen all over town.  Isabelle said that in the 11/7/22 packet included the lighting information.  
They will be reduced to minimum for security.  There is no light trespass off the property as shown on the 
lighting plans provided. Lighting is required to be full cut-off (shielded) fixtures and be within 2500 to 
3000 Kelvins in color temperature.  Neil Genthner asked how tall the poles were.  Andy J. said 16’ 
maximum, per the Town’s Ordinance.  Tom Hausmann said this means 1 acre would be lit - “as 
needed”- what does this mean? “More specifics are needed to address our concerns and those of our 
neighbors.”  Jenny Begin asked if there would be motion sensors in the parking lot.  Andy J. said that 
they (the applicants) are acutely aware of safety concerns and have planned for safety.  Isabelle noted that 
the Board may find it appropriate to adopt a condition of approval that a plan to turn down lighting to 
minimum amount required for security, to be reviewed by staff including the Police Department, Town 
Planner and the CEO, is provided by the applicants.   

Jennifer Fox was concerned about access to the property at School Street.  That is a State maintained 
road and she believes it needs a movement permit from DOT. Isabelle responded that, as far as she is 
aware, it does not. Jennifer Fox questions the adequacy of Piper Mill Road and the compliance with the 
Comprehensive Plan.  Jennifer is concerned about “village expansion” area. She believes there is too 
much impervious surface, and the runoff into clam and oyster beds could be harmful to the environment 
and the community.                                                                                                                    

 Isabelle said it is the Board’s responsibility to address this and evaluate whether the proposed projects 
meets all requirements of the Town’s Ordinances.  Wilder Hunt said a good percentage of our population 
is elderly.  There is a tremendous need for this type of facility.  Based on his assumption that the material 
presented is accurate, he is in favor.  Rebecca Dillion said the renderings the Board has are to scale as 
defined in the ordinance.  Height, design standards and density are all in compliance.  Amy Lalime was 
concerned about the water.  Other towns protect trees and have to measure first before removal.  
Jonathan Eaton replied that the storm water plan is very good. There is a tributary which connects with 
Castner Creek.  Mr. Hausmann referred back to the traffic saying that there are pictures of right/left 
visibility, but the right onto High St is actually left and there are no pictures of right turning traffic.  Also, 
in the November packet, there was reference to Bar Harbor hydrants and blasting- he thinks it should have 
been Damariscotta to which it was referring.  Andy J. said he would fix any typos and make the change 
to Damariscotta.  

Dan Maguire said they have had positive comments from the neighbors with regard to the Rockland 
facility.  It is the first in the state to have all private beds.  This facility in Damariscotta will replace two 
existing facilities.  The project developers are aware of its size and have tried to make it as small as 
possible.  Jennifer Fox went to Rockland today and drove by the ocean side of it; it does not have a 
comfortable “village” feel to it.  It looks like a space ship.  The construction is impressive, but not small 



by any means – it is formidable.”  She feels the Board needs to take a field trip and see it for themselves.  
The wetlands consideration needs a Tier I review from the State.  “You have no DEP or Army Corps of 
Engineers permits.”                                                                       

Andy J. addressed the permits saying that the timeline is lengthy. Currently, we have the Army Corps 
permit and we are in the midst of the State review.  Hoping to have final approval of the site location by 
the end of the month.  Jenny Begin asked if there were any mitigations.  Andy said that the proposed 
impact only necessitates a Tier I permit.  Only Tier II permits require mitigations, such as wetland 
compensation fees to be paid to the Town. 

Jonathan Eaton introduced Bill Bray, Traffic Engineer.  He summarized the supplemental memo 
provided in the meeting packet.  He recommends removing low level brush and a couple of trees which 
are slightly impeding sight distances from High Street turning onto School Street.  Jonathan Eaton asked 
if this was a State issue.  Bill Bray said he thought it was a local responsibility, but he wasn’t sure. 

Mr. Hausmann said in the real world people go faster [on School Street] than the posted 35 mph.  He 
feels more sight distance is needed, and reiterated his desire to make sure developers think ahead and 
make this project as safe as possible. 

Bill Bray suggested that the Town consider creating a 4-way stop at the School Street / High Street / 
Piper Mill Road intersection if there is concern about speeding traffic on School Street and safety issues 
exiting from High and Piper Mill. 

Jenny Begin asked about landscaping.  Could they show her where the plants and evergreens would go?  
Andy J. said they are planning on 6-7’ conifers and deciduous tree mix and spread through the courtyard 
as will allow.  Jenny asked which species are planned.  Andy said a mixed buffering species. The intent 
is to mimic what is there now.                                                                                                                                                                   

Jonathan Eaton  asked if clarity had been provided [to the public] through the public hearing?  Have all 
questions been answered before closing?   Wilder Hunt said, regarding the public hearing, there has been 
ample time and opportunity to have input. In addition, the Chair could allow for public comment at the 
next meeting even after the public hearing has been closed. Isabelle noted that if the Planning Board was 
considering closing the public hearing, they should either make a decision this evening or communicate 
with the applicants what is still missing from the application. Neil Genthner said he believed only typos 
were left to address. Geoff Keochakian asked what the next steps are if this project is approved. Isabelle 
provided summary of the “condition compliance” process, where the applicants will begin to fulfill 
conditions of approval prior to submitting for building permits.  Mr. Hausmann asked if the project 
addresses the “village character” part of the Comprehensive Plan.  Does the developer’s proposal comply 
with the Comprehensive Plan?  Jonathan Eaton read the relevant Comprehensive Plan policy 
surrounding this growth area into the record. The Growth Area identifies allowable uses such as:  
senior/elder care; handicapped accessible apartments; and small-scale businesses.  Neil Genthner said 
according to this, it complies. Andrea K. asked about pedestrian traffic. Isabelle noted that one of her 
suggested conditions of approval was that the applicant will provide sidewalks along their property to 
School Street.    



On motion (Hunt/Begin) to close the public hearing and table further review until the January 3, 
2023, meeting.         Vote:  4-0-1 (Genthner abstaining)                       

 B.  New Business                                                                                                                                                   
       1.  Sketch (Conceptual) Plan Review:  Proposed 2-story building to contain 32 age-
restricted (senior) dwelling units at 207 Ledgewood Court Drive (Tax Map 1, Lot 50-3)                             
Meg Robbins began the presentation stating that they desire to expand the present development which 
lies within the Rural Zoning District and the Village Extension Growth Area (per the Comprehensive 
Plan). The applicants plan to construct 32 units of affordable, senior apartments. Senior apartments is a 
conditional use in the Rural Zoning District. Maine Housing Authority will be involved and tax credits 
are available. The proposed building will be two stories with internal sidewalks, parking areas, and 
associated site improvements and will be limited to those age 55+ who make less than 60% of Area 
Median Income as determined by the US Department of Housing and Urban Development. Amenities 
include laundry rooms on each floor; 33 parking spaces based on 33 beds.  They will be clearing less than 
2 acres and the building is proposed to be built within a fairly wooded area of the site, so will be less 
visible from the road.                                                                                

Steve Bushey added that there was common space for groups and private gatherings/meetings.  Each unit 
is about 585 sq. ft.  The building will have pitched roofing; the 6/12 pitch will have hips.  There is a three-
color scheme for the building. There are no outside porches, but they are planning on raised flower beds 
which connect to the outside and the common area.  Jenny Begin asked if anyone had considered 
something different than what is already there.  Could they rethink the design to incorporate patios, 
porches, and an appealing common area?  Response:  They looked at “L” shaped design, but very difficult 
given site constraints, including wetlands.  There is laundry on each floor and it’ll be fully sprinkler 
accessible.                                                                                                                                                                           

Ledgewood, LLC is going to purchase the property and are currently the management company.  A site 
visit is needed by Ordinance, which is scheduled for December 19, 2022, at 3 p.m. as there is a required 
notice to the public.  The proposed site is flagged and staked.  The Board would like to see the parking 
area also flagged and staked.  Jenny Begin reiterated her desire to see more access to the outside.   

 C.  OTHER  

 1.  Questions from the Public -                                                                                                                             
Isabelle asked if the Board had any desire to adopt a Remote Meeting Policy, to allow Board members to 
participate via Zoom in an emergency.  Neil Genthner said that this should be looked at.  There are times 
people are out of town, but could attend via Zoom; or, as we’ve seen over the last couple years, 
quarantine has not permitted in person meetings. Remaining Board members seemed to be in favor.  
Isabelle also mentioned that there are a couple vacancies on the Comprehensive Planning Committee if 
anyone wants to join, or if anyone knows of a community member who would like to join.  Please contact 
her. 

 2.  Housekeeping - None  

 3.  Planner’s Report- None    



D.  Adjournment                                                                                                                                                                                           
On motion (Genthner/Day) to adjourn the meeting at 8:58 p.m.                                                                                                                                                   

 

Respectfully  submitted, 

 

Lynda Letteney                                                                                                                                                    
Recording Secretary 

 

We the undersigned approve the minutes for the Planning Board Meeting of December 5, 2022. 

 

_________________________________________________                                                           
Jonathan Eaton, Chairperson 

 

Minutes of the Planning Board (cont’d)  December 5, 2022 

 

 

__________________________________________________                                                                        
Jenny Begin 

 

________________________________________________                                                                                  
Neil Genthner 

 

___ ____________________________________________                                                                              
Wilder Hunt 

 

______Absent__________________________________________                                                                        
Ann Jackson 

 

_______________________________________________                                                                                              
Daniel Day (alternate) 



 

____Absent____________________________________________                                                                                                             
Gary Rosenthal (alternate                                                                           

 

Minutes for (December 5, 2022) signed ________________________________                                                    
       Date 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


	PB_Draft Packet_01.03.2023.pdf
	PB_Agenda_2023_0103.pdf

	Packet Table of Contents_TEMPLATE.pdf
	PB_Draft Packet_01.03.2023
	MEMO_5 Coastal Market Dr_PID 2205.pdf
	Introduction
	Submission Chronology
	Project Data
	Review Process & UNIQUE ISSUES
	Analysis of Project
	Waivers
	Recommendation
	Conditions of Approval


	FINDINGS_5 Coastal Market Dr_PID 2205.pdf
	PB_Draft Packet_01.03.2023.pdf
	Application Packet_12.05.2022.pdf

	Town of Damariscotta Maine Mail - Re_ Site Plans.pdf
	S2 Sheridan Site Plan.PDF
	PB_Draft Packet_01.03.2023
	MEMO_Info Center Holding Tank_PID 2207_01.03.2023.pdf
	Introduction
	Submission Chronology
	Project Data
	Review Process
	Analysis of Project
	Waivers
	Recommendation
	Conditions of Approval

	Attachments:

	FINDINGS_Info Center Holding Tank_PID 2207.pdf
	Application binder.pdf
	20457 C1-UTILITY CONNECTION PLAN (B).pdf
	PB_Draft Packet_01.03.2023.pdf
	PB 12-5-22 minutes.pdf
	MEMO_Clippership Landing Site Plan_01.03.2022.pdf
	Introduction
	Submission Chronology
	Project Data
	Review Process
	Analysis of Project
	Waivers
	Recommendation
	Suggested Conditions of Approval


	FINDINGS_Clippership Site Plan_PID 2201_01.03.2022.pdf
	MMA Opinion re_ Land Use Definition of Dwelling.pdf
	Clippership Landing. Letter to Planning Board. Damariscotta.  Supplemental Information 12.23.22 (1).pdf
	Clippership Letter to Damariscotta Planning Board. Comprehensive Plan.  12.23.22.pdf
	LincolnHealth. Letter of Support to Damariscotta Planning Board 12.22.22.pdf
	Renderings of Clippership Landing.pdf
	Photos of other facilities.pdf
	Town of Damariscotta Maine Mail - Tier 1 review for Clipper Ship.pdf
	Town of Damariscotta Maine Mail - Opposition to the proposed 102 room Nursing home.pdf
	Ranes public comment_11.19.2022.pdf
	S. Sage - Clippership Landing facity project.pdf






